

# **BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS INC**

# FORM 1-A

(Registration A Offering Under the Securities Act of 1933)

# Filed 01/22/24

Telephone 604.643.1745

CIK 0001122993

Symbol BMXI

SIC Code 1400 - Mining and Quarrying Of Nonmetallic Minerals (No Fuels)

Industry Integrated Mining

Sector Basic Materials

Fiscal Year 11/30



# Form 1-A Issuer Information

FORM 1-A

Address 1

Address 2

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

# FORM 1-A REGULATION A OFFERING STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

OMB APPROVAL

OMB Number: 3235-0286

Estimated average burden hours per response: 608.0

1-A: Filer Information		
Issuer CIK	0001122993	
Issuer CCC	XXXXXXXX	
DOS File Number		
Offering File Number		
Is this a LIVE or TEST Filing?	☑ LIVE ☐ TEST	
Would you like a Return Copy?		
Notify via Filing Website only?		
Since Last Filing?		
Submission Contact Information		
Name		
Phone		
E-Mail Address		
1-A: Item 1. Issuer Information		
Issuer Infomation		
Exact name of issuer as specified in the issuer's charter	BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS INC	
Jurisdiction of Incorporation / Organization	NEVADA	
Year of Incorporation	1999	
CIK	0001122993	
Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code	MINING, QUARRYING OF NONMETALLIC MINERALS (NO FUELS)	
I.R.S. Employer Identification Number	98-0201259	
Total number of full-time employees	30	
Total number of part-time employees	100	
Contact Infomation		
Address of Principal Executive Offices		

1 EAST LIBERTY

Suite 500

City	Reno
State/Country	NEVADA
Mailing Zip/ Postal Code	89501
Phone	410-825-3930
Provide the following information for the person the S review of the offering statement.	ecurities and Exchange Commission's staff should call in connection with any pre-qualification
Name	Joe Laxague, Esq.
Address 1	
Address 2	
City	
State/Country	
Mailing Zip/ Postal Code	
Phone	
-	ities and Exchange Commission's staff may send any comment letters relating to the offering t, such e-mail addresses are not required to remain active.
Financial Statements	
Industry Group (select one)	☐ Banking ☐ Insurance ☒ Other
following table does not include all of the line items fro and similar obligations. To determine "Total Revenues	I contained in this offering statement to provide the following information about the issuer. The om the financial statements. Long Term Debt would include notes payable, bonds, mortgages, s" for all companies selecting "Other" for their industry group, refer to Article 5-03(b)(1) of a refer to Article 7-04 of Regulation S-X for calculation of "Total Revenues" and paragraphs 5 ble to Revenues".
Balance Sheet Information	
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 64000.00
Investment Securities	\$ 500000.00
Total Investments	\$
Accounts and Notes Receivable	\$ 17708000.00
Loans	\$
Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E):	\$ 6150000.00
Property and Equipment	\$
Total Assets	\$ 38422000.00
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities	\$ 448000.00
Policy Liabilities and Accruals	\$
Deposits	\$
Long Term Debt	\$ 244000.00
Total Liabilities	\$ 1167000.00
Total Stockholders' Equity	\$ 37255000.00

Total Liabilities and Equity	\$ 38422000.00
Statement of Comprehensive Income Information	
Total Revenues	\$ 4850000.00
Total Interest Income	\$
Costs and Expenses Applicable to Revenues	\$ 1697000.00
Total Interest Expenses	\$
Depreciation and Amortization	\$ 52000.00
Net Income	\$ 2588000.00
Earnings Per Share - Basic	\$ 0.00
Earnings Per Share - Diluted	\$ 0.00
Name of Auditor (if any)	

# **Outstanding Securities**

Name of Class (if any) Common Equity

# Common Equity

Name of Class (if any) Common Equity	Common stock
Common Equity Units Outstanding	75451370
Common Equity CUSIP (if any):	114270200
Common Equity Units Name of Trading Center or Quotation Medium (if any)	OTC Markets

# Proforred Fauity

Preferred Equity	
Preferred Equity Name of Class (if any)	N/A
Preferred Equity Units Outstanding	0
Preferred Equity CUSIP (if any)	000000000
Preferred Equity Name of Trading Center or Quotation Medium (if any)	N/A
Debt Securities	

Debt Securities		
Debt Securities Name of Class (if any)	N/A	
Debt Securities Units Outstanding	0	
Debt Securities CUSIP (if any):	000000000	
Debt Securities Name of Trading Center or Quotation Medium (if any)	N/A	

# 1-A: Item 2. Issuer Eligibility

# Issuer Eligibility

Check this box to certify that all of the following statements are true for the issuer(s)

# X

- Organized under the laws of the United States or Canada, or any State, Province, Territory or possession thereof, or the District of Columbia.
- Principal place of business is in the United States or Canada.
- Not subject to section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

- Not a development stage company that either (a) has no specific business plan or purpose, or (b) has indicated that its business plan is to merge with an unidentified company or companies.
- Not an investment company registered or required to be registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940.
- Not issuing fractional undivided interests in oil or gas rights, or a similar interest in other mineral rights.
- Not issuing asset-backed securities as defined in Item 1101 (c) of Regulation AB.
- Not, and has not been, subject to any order of the Commission entered pursuant to Section 12(j) of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. 78l(j)) within five years before the filing of this offering statement.
- Has filed with the Commission all the reports it was required to file, if any, pursuant to Rule 257 during the two years immediately before the filing of the offering statement (or for such shorter period that the issuer was required to file such reports).

# 1-A: Item 3. Application of Rule 262

# Application Rule 262

Check this box to certify that, as of the time of this filing, each person described in Rule 262 of Regulation A is either not disqualified under that rule or is disqualified but has received a waiver of such disqualification.

X

Check this box if "bad actor" disclosure under Rule 262(d) is provided in Part II of the offering statement.

1 A. T40m

# 1-A: Item 4. Summary Information Regarding the Offering and Other Current or Proposed Offerings

Summary Infomation			
☑ Tier1 ☐ Tier2			
☑ Unaudited ☐ Audited			
⊠ Yes □ No			
☐ Yes ☒ No			
⊠ Yes □ No			
⊠ Yes □ No			
☐ Yes ☒ No			
☐ Yes ☒ No			
25000000			
78451370			

The information called for by this item below may be omitted if undetermined at the time of filing or submission, except that if a price range has been included in the offering statement, the midpoint of that range must be used to respond. Please refer to Rule 251(a) for the definition of "aggregate"

offering price" or "aggregate sales" as used in this item. Please leave the field blank if undetermined at this time and include a zero if a particular item is not applicable to the offering.

**	
Price per security	\$
The portion of the aggregate offering price attributable to securities being offered on behalf of the issuer	\$ 0.00
The portion of the aggregate offering price attributable to securities being offered on behalf of selling securityholders	\$ 0.00
The portion of the aggregate offering price attributable to all the securities of the issuer sold pursuant to a qualified offering statement within the 12 months before the qualification of this offering statement	\$ 0.00
The estimated portion of aggregate sales attributable to securities that may be sold pursuant to any other qualified offering statement concurrently with securities being sold under this offering statement	\$ 0.00
Total (the sum of the aggregate offering price and aggregate sales in the four preceding paragraphs)	\$ 0.00

Anticipated fees in connection with this offering and names of service providers

Underwriters - Name of Service Provider		Underwriters - Fees	\$
Sales Commissions - Name of Service Provider		Sales Commissions - Fee	\$
Finders' Fees - Name of Service Provider		Finders' Fees - Fees	\$
Audit - Name of Service Provider		Audit - Fees	\$
Legal - Name of Service Provider	The Crone Law Group, P.C.	Legal - Fees	\$ 10000.00
Promoters - Name of Service Provider		Promoters - Fees	\$
Blue Sky Compliance - Name of Service Provider	The Crone Law Group, P.C.	Blue Sky Compliance - Fees	\$ 1000.00
CRD Number of any broker or dealer listed:			
Estimated net proceeds to the issuer	\$		
Clarification of responses (if necessary)			

# 1-A: Item 5. Jurisdictions in Which Securities are to be Offered

# Jurisdictions in Which Securities are to be Offered

Using the list below, select the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities

Selected States and Jurisdictions	ALABAMA
	ALASKA
	ARIZONA
	ARKANSAS

-	CALIFORNIA
-	COLORADO
(	CONNECTICUT
I	DELAWARE
I	FLORIDA
(	GEORGIA
I	HAWAII
I	DAHO
I	LLINOIS
I	NDIANA
I	OWA
ŀ	KANSAS
ŀ	KENTUCKY
I	LOUISIANA
1	MAINE
1	MARYLAND
1	MASSACHUSETTS
1	MICHIGAN
1	MINNESOTA
1	MISSISSIPPI
1	MISSOURI
1	MONTANA
1	NEBRASKA
1	NEVADA
1	NEW HAMPSHIRE
1	NEW JERSEY
1	NEW MEXICO
1	NEW YORK
1	NORTH CAROLINA
1	NORTH DAKOTA
(	OHIO
(	OKLAHOMA
(	OREGON
I	PENNSYLVANIA
I	RHODE ISLAND
5	SOUTH CAROLINA
5	SOUTH DAKOTA
1	ΓENNESSEE
1	ΓEXAS
ι	JTAH
7	VERMONT
-	VIRGINIA
1	WASHINGTON
V	WEST VIRGINIA
1	WISCONSIN
٦	WYOMING

BRITISH COLUMBIA, CANADA MANITOBA, CANADA MEW BRUNSWICK, CANADA NEW BRUNSWICK, CANADA NOVA SCOTIA, CANADA NOVA SCOTIA, CANADA NOVA SCOTIA, CANADA OUTBEC, CANADA OUTBEC, CANADA SASKATCHEWAN, CANADA YUKON, CANADA Y		ALBERTA, CANADA	
NEW BRUNSWICK, CANADA NEWFOUNDLAND, CANADA NEWFOUNDLAND, CANADA NOVA SCOTIA, CANADA ONTARIO, CANADA QUEBEC, CAN		BRITISH COLUMBIA, CANADA	
NEWFOUNDLAND, CANADA   NOVA SCOTIA, CANADA   ONTARIO, CANADA   O		MANITOBA, CANADA	
Nova SCOTIA. CANADA ONTARIO, CANADA ONTARIO, CANADA OUEBEC, CANADA OUEBEC, CANADA SASKATCHEWAN, CANADA VLKON, CANADA CANADA (FEDERAL LEVEL)  Lising the list below, select the jurisdictions in which the scurities are to be offered by underwriters, dealers or sales persons or check the appropriate box.  None  Same as the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities Selected States and Jurisdictions  -A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities  Lax: Item 6. Unregistered Securities  Intends I susued or Sold Within One Year  Unregistered Securities Issued As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a)Name of such issuer (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities sold  (3) Amount of such securities sold  (3) Amount of such securities of such issuer of any convertible notes; common stock  (3) Amount of such securities of such issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the		NEW BRUNSWICK, CANADA	
ONTARIO, CANADA PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND, CANADA QUEBEC, CANADA SASKATCHEWAN, CANADA YUKON, CANADA ASAKATCHEWAN, CANADA YUKON, CANADA CANADA (FEDERAL LEVEL)  Same as the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities Selected States and Jurisdictions  I-A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities Selected States and Jurisdictions  I-A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities  Issued or Sold Within One Year  Unregistered Securities Issued As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form I-A, state: (a)Name of such issuer (b)(1) Title of securities issued (2) Total Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of any securities of such securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  Samo, Sana and Lurand And Sanada An		NEWFOUNDLAND, CANADA	
## PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND, CANADA QUEBRE, CANADA SASKATCHEWAN, CANADA YUKON, CANADA CANADA (FFDERAL LEVEL)    Canada (FFDERAL LEVEL)   Canada (FFDE		NOVA SCOTIA, CANADA	
Using the list below, select the jurisdictions in which the securities are to be offered by underwriters, dealers or sales persons or check the appropriate box.  None  Same as the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities  Selected States and Jurisdictions  1-A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  None  Unregistered Securities Issued As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a)Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities isold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal security holder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the uncertainty the convertible notes issued; shares of common stock issued upon partial conversion of notes.		-	
SASKATCHEWAN, CANADA YUKON, CANADA CANADA (FEDERAL LEVEL)  Using the list below, select the jurisdictions in which the securities are to be offered by underwriters, dealers or sales persons or check the appropriate box  None  Same as the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities  Selected States and Jurisdictions  1-A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  None  Unregistered Securities Issued  As to any surregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a)Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, premoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the computer of the securities of computing the computer of the securities of computing the c			
YUKON, CANADA   CANADA   CANADA   CANADA (FEDERAL LEVEL)			
Using the list below, select the jurisdictions in which the securities are to be offered by underwriters, dealers or sales persons or check the appropriate box  Nonc  Same as the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities  Selected States and Jurisdictions  1-A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  None  Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  None  Unregistered Securities Issued  As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a)Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any)			
Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  Unregistered Securities Issued  As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a) Name of such issuer  (b) (1) Title of securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c) (1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the enters is a securities of computing the securities is the for computing the securities is the for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the securities is for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the securities is and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the basis for computing the enters is a such and the enters is a such and the enters is a such			
None  Same as the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities  Selected States and Jurisdictions  1-A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  None   Unregistered Securities Issued  As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a) Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any)		CANADA (FEDERAL LEVEL)	
Same as the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities  Selected States and Jurisdictions  1-A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  None  Unregistered Securities Issued  As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a) Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities of such issuer.  (e)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  3007,500 in cash for convertible notes issued; shares of common stock issued upon partial conversion of notes.		e securities are to be offered by underwriters, dealers or sales persons or check the appropriate	
Selected States and Jurisdictions  1-A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  None  Unregistered Securities Issued  As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a)Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	None	$\boxtimes$	
Inegistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year    Variety			
Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year  None  Unregistered Securities Issued  As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a) Name of such issuer  (b) (1) Title of securities issued  (Convertible notes; common stock  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c) (1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	Selected States and Jurisdictions		
None  Unregistered Securities Issued  As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a) Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	1-A: Item 6. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year		
As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a)Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within C	One Year	
As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:  (a) Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the			
(a) Name of such issuer  (b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	Unregistered Securities Issued		
(b)(1) Title of securities issued  (2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer of an	ny of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year before the filing of this Form 1-A, state:	
(2) Total Amount of such securities issued  (3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	(a)Name of such issuer	Brookmount Explorations Inc	
(3) Amount of such securities sold by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	(b)(1) Title of securities issued	Convertible notes; common stock	
the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer.  (c)(1) Aggregate consideration for which the securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	(2) Total Amount of such securities issued	307500	
securities were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof.  (2) Aggregate consideration for which the securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal securityholder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such	0	
securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the	securities were issued and basis for computing		
amount thereof (if different from the basis described in (c)(1)).  Unregistered Securities Act	securities listed in (b)(3) of this item (if any) were issued and the basis for computing the amount thereof (if different from the basis		

PUERTO RICO

(e) Indicate the section of the Securities Act or Commission rule or regulation relied upon for exemption from the registration requirements of such Act and state briefly the facts relied upon for such exemption

Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act; all convertible notes and conversion shares issued to a single investor in a private offering.

An offering statement pursuant to Regulation A relating to these securities has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Information contained in this Preliminary Offering Circular is subject to completion or amendment. These securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted before the offering statement filed with the Commission is qualified. This Preliminary Offering Circular shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor may there be any sales of these securities in any state in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful before registration or qualification under the laws of any such state. We may elect to satisfy our obligation to deliver a Final Offering circular by sending you a notice within two business days after the completion of our sale to you that contains the URL where the Final Offering Circular or the offering statement in which such Final Offering Circular was filed may be obtained.

**PRELIMINARY** 

OFFERING CIRCULAR SUBJECT TO COMPLETION Dated January 19, 2024

# BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS, INC. 1 EAST LIBERTY Suite 500. RENO, NV 89501 WWW.BROOKMOUNTCORP.COM

# Up To 25,000,000 Shares of Common Stock

This offering is for up to 25,000,000 common shares ("Shares") of Brookmount Explorations, Inc. (the "Company," "Brookmount Explorations," "BMXI," "we," "us," and "our") at an estimated price range per share of \$0.02 to \$0.06 per share, assuming the offering price is \$0.02 per share, resulting in gross proceeds of up to \$500,000.00, before deduction of offering expenses, assuming all shares are sold. There is no minimum offering amount or escrow established and no minimum investment amount for investors. All subscription funds accepted by the Company will be immediately available for the Company's use.

Generally, no sale may be made to you in this offering if the aggregate purchase price you pay is more than 10% of the greater of your annual income or net worth. Different rules apply to accredited investors and non-natural persons. Before making any representation that your investment does not exceed applicable thresholds, we encourage you to review Rule 251(d)(2)(i)(C) of Regulation A. For general information on investing, we encourage you to refer to www.investor.gov.

Shares offered by the Company will be sold through the Company's executive officers and directors on a "best-efforts" basis. We may also engage sales agents licensed through the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") and pay such agents cash and/or stock-based compensation, which will be announced through a supplement to this Offering Circular. The sale of Shares will commence once the Offering Statement to which this Offering Circular relates is qualified by the Securities Exchange Commission ("SEC") and continue for one year thereafter or until all shares have been sold, whichever occurs first. Notwithstanding, the Company may elect to extend this offering for an additional 90 days or cancel or terminate it at any time.

Our common stock is not now listed on any national securities exchange or the NASDAQ stock market. However, our stock is quoted on the OTC Market's Pink Market under the symbol "BMXI." While our common stock has been on the Pink Market, there has been limited trading volume and the trading prices have been volatile. There is no guarantee that an active trading market will develop. There is no guarantee that our securities will ever trade on any listed exchange or be quoted on OTCQB or OTQX marketplaces. See "Securities Being Offered" on Page 31 for the rights and privileges associated with our common stock. We qualify as an "emerging growth company" as defined in the Jumpstart our Business Startups Act ("JOBS Act")

This offering is being made pursuant to Tier 1 of Regulation A, following the Form 1-A Offering Circular disclosure format for smaller reporting companies.

		Pı	oposed	P	roposed						
	Amount to be	ma	aximum	m	aximum	Cor	mmissions an	d			
	registered	offe	ring price	a	ggregate		Discounts		P	roceeds to	
Title of each class of securities to be registered	[1]	per unit (3)		per unit (3) offering price		ering price		[2]		•	Company
Common Stock offered by BMXI	25,000,000	\$	\$0.020	\$	500,000	\$		0	\$	500,000	

- (1) Pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act, the securities being registered hereunder include such indeterminate number of additional shares of common stock as may be issued after the date hereof as a result of stock splits, stock dividends or similar transactions.
- (2) There are no underwriting fees or commissions currently associated with this offering; however, the Company may engage sales associates after this offering commences. Nonetheless, the Company expects to spend approximately \$50,000 in expenses relating to this offering, including legal, accounting, travel, printing, and other misc. expenses.
- (3) The Shares are being offered on an estimated price range per share of \$0.02 to \$0.06 per share, with an assumed offering price of \$0.02 per share.

This offering is highly speculative and these securities involve a high degree of risk and should be considered only by persons who can afford the loss of their entire investment. See "Risk Factors" on Page 5.

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS

OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SOLICITATION MATERIALS. THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION; HOWEVER, THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.

1 East Liberty Suite 500, Reno NV 89501 410-825-3930; http://www.brookmountcorp.com Offering Circular Date: January 19, 2023

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUMMARY INFORMATION	3
RISK FACTORS	5
SPECIAL INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS	14
<u>DILUTION</u>	15
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	16
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	18
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS	18
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY	22
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	24
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES	27
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	29
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS	30
INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS	30
SECURITIES BEING OFFERED	31
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	33
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	34
<u>EXHIBITS</u>	36
2	

# **SUMMARY INFORMATION**

This summary highlights some of the information in this circular. It is not complete and may not contain all of the information that you may want to consider. To understand this offering fully, you should carefully read the entire circular, including the section entitled "Risk Factors," before making a decision to invest in our securities. Unless otherwise noted or unless the context otherwise requires, the terms "we," "us," "our," "BMXI," the "Company," and "Brookmount Explorations" refer to Brookmount Explorations, Inc. together with its wholly owned subsidiaries.

# The Company

Brookmount Explorations, Inc. was organized in 1999 and is incorporated in Nevada. The Company was organized for the purpose of acquiring, exploring, and developing mineral properties.

Effective January 30, 2018, pursuant to a Securities Exchange Agreement dated as of January 16, 2018 (the "Exchange Agreement") between Brookmount Explorations, Inc. (the "Company") and the stockholders (the "SL Stockholders") of SL Group Holdings, Limited, a British Virgin Island corporation ("SL"), the SL Stockholders exchanged all of the shares of capital stock of SL for 120,000,000 shares of the Common Stock of the Company (the "Exchanged Shares"), and the Company's Series A Convertible Notes. As a result of the Share Exchange, SL became a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company, which on a going forward basis will result in consolidated financial reporting by Brookmount Explorations, Inc. to include the results of SL Group Holdings, Limited. The closing of the Share Exchange occurred concurrently with entry into the Share Exchange Agreement and resulted in a change of control for the Company. SL was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands as a holding company for strategic, high growth mineral investments in South East Asia, particularly Indonesia and the Philippines, the region's most dynamic growth economies with high levels of natural resources and stable democratic political systems.

The Company has registered office in Reno and with offices in Hong Kong, Manado, Indonesia and Melbourne, Australia. The executive offices are located at 12121 Wilshire Blvd, Los Angles, CA 90025, and our telephone number is (410) 825-3930.

The Company is currently authorized to issue 200,000,000 shares of common stock, \$0.001 par value. As of December 28, 2023, we had approximately 75,451,370 common shares issued and outstanding held by approximately 290 holders of record. Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTC Market's Pink Market under the symbol "BMXI." On December 27, 2023, the closing price for our common stock on the OTC Pink Market was \$0.0398 per share.

#### **Business Overview**

Brookmount Explorations, Inc. is an operator of producing gold properties in the Republic of Indonesia. The company made its first investment in northern Indonesia in 2016 and now owns two gold mining operations in Minahasa Regency of Sulawesi province, one of Indonesia's most significant areas of gold mineralization having been largely surveyed, assessed and operated by Newmont Mining, one of the world's largest gold mining conglomerates.

Brookmount's operating strategy is twofold: to build a portfolio of high ore grade, fully licensed properties which carry relevant operating permits and are either in, or can be readily brought up to production, and; acquire high quality gold concessions with potentially significant confirmed and /or probable reserves which can be confirmed, to international standards, by relevant JORC or 43/101 drilling analysis. The Company will acquire high quality gold concessions and invest in drilling programs to bring reserves up to JORC standards, thus strengthening its balance sheet and increasing shareholder value.

#### **Emerging Growth Company**

We are an emerging growth company under the JOBS Act. We shall continue to be deemed an emerging growth company until the earliest of:

- (a) the last day of the fiscal year of the issuer during which it had total annual gross revenues of \$1,500,000,000 (as such amount is indexed for inflation every five years by the Commission to reflect the change in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, setting the threshold to the nearest 1,000,000) or more;
- (b) the last day of the fiscal year of the issuer following the fifth anniversary of the date of the first sale of common equity securities of the issuer pursuant to an effective IPO registration statement;
- (c) the date on which such issuer has, during the previous three-year period, issued more than \$1,500,000,000 in nonconvertible debt; or
- (d) the date on which such issuer is deemed to be a 'large accelerated filer', as defined in section 240.12b-2 of title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, or any successor thereto.'

The Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that we may elect to utilize the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards and such election is irrevocable if made. As such, we have made the election to use the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards under Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act. Please refer to a discussion under "Risk Factors" of the effect on our financial statements of such election.

As an emerging growth company we are exempt from Section 404(b) of Sarbanes Oxley. Section 404(a) requires Issuers to publish information in their annual reports concerning the scope and adequacy of the internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting. This statement shall also assess the effectiveness of such internal controls and procedures. Section 404(b) requires that the registered accounting firm shall, in the same report, attest to and report on the assessment on the effectiveness of the internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting. As an emerging growth company we are also exempt from Section 14A (a) and (b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 which require the shareholder approval of executive compensation and golden parachutes.

We have elected to use the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards under Section 102(b)(2) of the JOBS Act, that allows us to delay the adoption of new or revised accounting standards that have different effective dates for public and private companies until those standards apply to private companies. As a result of this election, our financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with public company effective dates.

# **Summary of the Offering**

Securities Offered	25,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.001 (the "Common Stock") by the Company.
	Shares offered by the Company will be sold by our directors and executive officers. We may also elect to engage licensed broker-dealers. No sales agents have yet been engaged to sell shares. All shares will be offered on a "best-efforts" basis. Investors may be publicly solicited provided the "blue sky" regulations in the states in which the Company solicits investors allow such solicitation.
Offering price range per Share	\$0.02 to \$0.06 per share
Assumed Offering price per Share	\$0.02 per share
Number of shares outstanding before the offering of common shares	75,453,370. shares of Common Stock as of the date hereof.
Number of shares outstanding after the offering of common shares if all the shares being offered are sold	100,453,370 shares of Common Stock will be issued and outstanding after this offering is completed if all the shares being offered are sold.
Minimum number of shares to be sold in this offering	None.
Minimum investment	There is no minimum investment amount for investors.
Market for the common shares	There is only a limited public market for the common shares and a broad public market may never develop. The common stock is quoted on OTC Pink, informally known as the "Pink Sheets," under the symbol BMXI.
Use of proceeds	The Company intends to use the proceeds of this offering for marketing, inventory, acquisition and for general and administrative purposes. See "Use of Proceeds" section for details.  There is no minimum offering amount and no provision to escrow or return investor funds if any minimum number of shares is not sold. All funds raised by the Company from this offering will be immediately
	available for the Company's use.
Termination of the offering	The offering will conclude upon the earlier of the sale of all 0,000,000 shares or one year after the date of this offering circular.

You should rely only upon the information contained in this offering circular. The Company has not authorized anyone to provide you with information, including projections of performance, different from that which is contained in this offering circular. The Company is offering to sell shares of common stock and seeking offers only in jurisdictions where offers and sales are permitted. The information contained in here is accurate only as of the date of this offering circular, regardless of the time of delivery of this offering circular or of any sale of the common stock.

# ABOUT THIS CIRCULAR

We have prepared this offering circular to be filed with the SEC for our offering of securities. The offering circular includes exhibits that provide more detailed descriptions of the matters discussed in this circular. You should rely only on the information contained in this circular and its exhibits. We have not authorized any person to provide you with any information different from that contained in this circular. The information contained in this circular is complete and accurate only as of the date of this circular, regardless of the time of delivery of this circular or sale of our shares. This circular contains summaries of certain other documents, but reference is hereby made to the full text of the actual documents for complete information concerning the rights and obligations of the parties thereto. All documents relating to this offering and related documents and agreements, if readily available to us, will be made available to a prospective investor or its representatives upon request.

# INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

The industry and market data used throughout this circular have been obtained from our own research, surveys or studies conducted by third parties and industry or general publications. Industry publications and surveys generally state that they have obtained information from sources believed to be reliable, but do not guarantee the accuracy and completeness of such information. We believe that each of these studies and publications is reliable. We have not engaged any person or entity to provide us with industry or market data.

# TAX CONSIDERATIONS

No information contained herein, nor in any prior, contemporaneous or subsequent communication should be construed by a prospective investor as legal or tax advice. We are not providing any tax advice as to the acquisition, holding or disposition of the securities offered herein. In making an investment decision, investors are strongly encouraged to consult their own tax advisor to determine the U.S. Federal, state and any applicable foreign tax consequences relating to their investment in our securities. This written communication is not intended to be "written advice," as defined in Circular 230 published by the U.S. Treasury Department.

# RISK FACTORS

Any investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Investors should carefully consider the risks described below and all of the information contained in this circular before deciding whether to purchase our common stock. Our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by these risks if any of them actually occur. In addition to the other information provided in this circular, you should carefully consider the following risk factors in evaluating our business and before purchasing any of our common stock. The following may not be a comprehensive list of all risks relating to the Company or an investment in its common stock but are those risks as identified by the Company's management as material.

# Risks Related to Our Business

# The exploration and mining industry is highly competitive.

We face significant competition in our business of exploration and mining, a business in which we will compete with other gold resource exploration and development companies for financing and for the acquisition of new gold properties. Many of the gold resource exploration and development companies with whom we compete have greater financial and technical resources than us. Accordingly, these competitors may be able to spend greater amounts on acquisitions of gold properties of merit, on exploration of their gold properties and on development of their gold properties. In addition, they may be able to afford greater geological expertise in the targeting and exploration of gold properties. This competition could result in competitors having gold properties of greater quality and interest to prospective investors who may finance additional exploration and development. This competition could adversely impact on our ability to finance further exploration and to achieve the financing necessary for us to develop our gold properties.

# Our mineral exploration efforts are highly speculative.

Mineral exploration is highly speculative. It involves many risks and is often non-productive. Even if we believe we have found a valuable mineral deposit, it may be several years before production is possible. During that time, it may become no longer feasible to produce those minerals for economic, regulatory, political, or other reasons. Additionally, we may be required to make substantial capital expenditures and to construct mining and processing facilities. As a result of these costs and uncertainties, we may be unable to start, or if started, to finish our exploration activities.

Mining operations in general involve a high degree of risk, which we may be unable, or may not choose to insure against, making exploration and/or development activities we may pursue subject to potential legal liability for certain claims.

Our operations are subject to all the hazards and risks normally encountered in the exploration, development, and production of minerals. These include unusual and unexpected geological formations, rock falls, flooding and other conditions involved in the drilling and removal of material, any of which could result in damage to, or destruction of, mines and other producing facilities, damage to life or property, environmental damage, and possible legal liability. Although we plan to take adequate precautions to minimize these risks, and risks associated with equipment failure or failure of retaining dams which may result in environmental pollution, there can be no assurance that even with our precautions, damage or loss will not occur and that we will not be subject to liability which will have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operation and financial condition.

# Weather interruptions in Indonesia may affect and delay our exploration operations.

The weather is a hot and humid tropical wet and dry climate according to the Köppen climate classification system. Despite being located relatively close to the equator, the area has distinct wet and dry seasons. Wet seasons in Kalimantan cover most of the year, running from November through June.

We engage in transactions with related parties and such transactions present possible conflicts of interest that could have an adverse effect on us.

We have entered, and may continue to enter, into transactions with related parties for financing, corporate, business development and operational services, as detailed herein. Such transactions may not have been entered into on an arm's-length basis, and we may have achieved more or less favorable terms because such transactions were entered into with our related parties. This could have a material effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Such conflicts could cause an individual in our management to seek to advance his or her economic interests or the economic interests of certain related parties above ours. Further, the appearance of conflicts of interest created by related party transactions could impair the confidence of our investors.

We may not be able to raise capital when needed, if at all, which would force us to delay, reduce or eliminate our service locations and product development programs or commercialization efforts and could cause our business to fail.

We expect to need additional funding to complete our planned exploration program and acquisition of properties. There are no assurances that future funding will be available on favorable terms or at all. The failure to fund our operating and capital requirements could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations if we are unable to raise additional funds in the future, our business will need to be curtailed.

# The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has had, and is expected to continue to have, an adverse effect on our business and our financial results.

The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted the global economy, disrupted consumer spending and global supply chains and created significant volatility and disruption of financial markets. The COVID-19 pandemic has had and is expected to continue to have an adverse effect on our business and financial performance. In light of the lockdown requirements surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic, production at the heap leaching operations have been suspended since April. The extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, including our ability to execute our business strategies as planned, will depend on future developments, including the duration and severity of the pandemic, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.

# Unfavorable global economic conditions may have a material adverse effect on us since raising capital to continue our operations could be more difficult.

Current global financial conditions and recent market events have been characterized by increased volatility and the resulting tightening of the credit and capital markets has reduced the amount of available liquidity and overall economic activity. We cannot guaranty that debt or equity financing, the ability to borrow funds or cash generated by operations will be available or sufficient to meet or satisfy our initiatives, objectives, or requirements. Our inability to access sufficient amounts of capital on terms acceptable to us for our operations will negatively impact our business, prospects, liquidity and financial condition.

#### Risks Related to Our Corporate Operations

# Our financial statements have not been audited by a certified public accountant.

Management has prepared the accompanying financial statements. They have not been audited by a certified public accountant. A certified public accountant is required to undertake certain procedures when it audits financial statements. Those audit procedures are designed to ensure the reliability and accuracy of the financial statements and to detect fraud and the potential for fraud in the issuer's financial reports. Investors will not have the benefit accruing from an independent audit of the financial statements.

# No intention to pay dividends.

A return on investment may be limited to the value of our common stock. We do not currently anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The payment of dividends on our common stock will depend on earnings, financial condition and other business and economic factors affecting it at such time as the Board may consider relevant. Our current intention is to apply net earnings, if any, in the foreseeable future to increasing our capital base and development and marketing efforts. There can be no assurance that the Company will ever have sufficient earnings to declare and pay dividends to the holders of our common stock, and in any event, a decision to declare and pay dividends is at the sole discretion of the Board. If we do not pay dividends, our common stock may be less valuable because a return on your investment would only occur if the Company's stock price appreciates.

# We depend heavily on key personnel, and turnover of key senior management could harm our business.

Our future business and results of operations depend in significant part upon the continued contributions of our senior management personnel. If we lose their services or if they fail to perform in their current positions, or if we are not able to attract additional qualified individuals to our management team., our business could suffer. Significant turnover in our senior management could significantly deplete our institutional knowledge held by our existing senior management team. The loss or limitation of the services of any of our executive officers or members of our senior management team, or the inability to attract additional qualified management personnel, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flow.

The ability of stockholders to control our policies and effect a change of control of our company is limited by certain provisions of our Articles of Incorporation and bylaws and by Nevada law.

There are provisions in our Articles of Incorporation and bylaws that may discourage a third party from making a proposal to acquire us, even if some of our stockholders might consider the proposal to be in their best interests. These provisions include the following:

Our Articles of Incorporation authorizes our board of directors to issue shares of preferred stock with such rights, preferences and privileges as determined by the board, and therefore to authorize us to issue such shares of stock. We believe these Articles of Incorporation provisions will provide us with increased flexibility in structuring possible future financings. The additional classes or series will be available for issuance without further action by our stockholders, unless such action is required by applicable law or the rules of any stock exchange or automated quotation system on which our securities may be listed or traded. Although our board of directors does not currently intend to do so, it could authorize us to issue a class or series of stock that could, depending upon the terms of the particular class or series, delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control of our company that might involve a premium price for holders of our common stock or that our common stockholders otherwise believe to be in their best interests.

In addition, certain provisions of the Nevada General Corporation Law, or the NGCL, may have the effect of impeding a third party from making a proposal to acquire us or of impeding a change of control under circumstances that otherwise could be in the best interests of our stockholders, including:

- "business combination" provisions that, subject to limitations, prohibit certain business combinations between us and an "interested stockholder" (defined generally as any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of our outstanding voting shares or an affiliate or associate of ours who, at any time within the two-year period prior to the date in question, was the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting power of our then outstanding voting shares) or an affiliate thereof for five years after the most recent date on which the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, and thereafter imposes special appraisal rights and special stockholder voting requirements on these combinations; and
- "control share" provisions that provide that holders of "control shares" of our company (defined as shares which, when aggregated with other shares controlled by the stockholder, entitle the stockholder to exercise voting power in the election of directors within one of three increasing ranges) acquired in a "control share acquisition" (defined as the direct or indirect acquisition of ownership or control of issued and outstanding "control shares," subject to certain exceptions) have no voting rights with respect to such shares except to the extent approved by our stockholders by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of all the votes entitled to be cast on the matter, excluding all interested shares.

The NGCL permits our board of directors, without stockholder approval and regardless of what is currently provided in our Articles of Incorporation or bylaws, to implement certain takeover defenses, including adopting a classified board or increasing the vote required to remove a director. Such takeover defenses may have the effect of inhibiting a third party from making an acquisition proposal for us or of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of us under the circumstances that otherwise could provide our common stockholders with the opportunity to realize a premium over the then current market price.

In addition, the provisions of our Articles of Incorporation on the removal of directors and the advance notice provisions of our bylaws could delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control of our company that might involve a premium price for holders of our common stock or otherwise be in their best interest.

Each item discussed above may delay, deter or prevent a change in control of our company, even if a proposed transaction is at a premium over the then-current market price for our common stock. Further, these provisions may apply in instances where some stockholders consider a transaction beneficial to them. As a result, our stock price may be negatively affected by these provisions.

# Our board of directors may change our policies without stockholder approval.

Our policies, including any policies with respect to investments, leverage, financing, growth, debt and capitalization, will be determined by our board of directors or those committees or officers to whom our board of directors delegates such authority. Our board of directors will also establish the amount of any dividends or other distributions that we may pay to our stockholders. Our board of directors or the committees or officers to which such decisions are delegated will have the ability to amend or revise these and our other policies at any time without stockholder vote. Accordingly, our stockholders will not be entitled to approve changes in our policies, and, while not intending to do so, may adopt policies that may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to take action against our directors and officers are limited, which could limit your recourse in the event of actions that you do not believe are in your best interests.

Nevada law provides that a director has no liability in that capacity if he or she satisfies his or her duties to us and our stockholders. Upon completion of this offering, as permitted by the NGCL, our Articles of Incorporation will limit the liability of our directors and officers to us and our stockholders for money damages, except for liability resulting from:

- actual receipt of an improper benefit or profit in money, property or services; or
- · a final judgment based upon a finding of active and deliberate dishonesty by the director or officer that was material to the cause of action adjudicated.

In addition, our Articles of Incorporation will authorize us to obligate us, and our bylaws will require us, to indemnify our directors for actions taken by them in those capacities to the maximum extent permitted by Nevada law. Our Articles of Incorporation and bylaws also authorize us to indemnify these officers for actions taken by them in those capacities to the maximum extent permitted by Nevada law. As a result, we and our stockholders may have more limited rights against our directors and officers than might otherwise exist. Accordingly, in the event that actions taken in good faith by any of our directors or officers impede the performance of our company, your ability to recover damages from such director or officer will be limited. In addition, we will be obligated to advance the defense costs incurred by our directors and our officers, and may, in the discretion of our board of directors, advance the defense costs incurred by our employees and other agents, in connection with legal proceedings.

# Our business could be adversely impacted if there are deficiencies in our disclosure controls and procedures or internal control over financial reporting.

The design and effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting may not prevent all errors, misstatements or misrepresentations. While management will continue to review the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, there can be no guarantee that our internal control over financial reporting will be effective in accomplishing all control objectives all of the time. Furthermore, our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting with respect to entities that we do not control or manage may be substantially more limited than those we maintain with respect to the subsidiaries that we have controlled or managed over the course of time. Deficiencies, including any material weakness, in our internal control over financial reporting which may occur in the future could result in misstatements of our results of operations, restatements of our financial statements, a decline in our stock price, or otherwise materially adversely affect our business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

# Risks Related to Doing Business in Indonesia

# It is not possible to predict the impact new laws and regulations, in particular laws and regulations affecting mining may have on our future activities.

Changes in laws or regulations however may materially increase our cost of doing business and operating in Indonesia and thereby materially and adversely affect the Indonesian entities. In addition, it may be necessary to modify existing structures and operations to adhere to evolving laws or regulations.

# In Indonesia, IUPs are subject to various conditions and compliance requirements.

Failure to comply with those conditions and compliance requirements, including periodically submitting annual reports and budget plans to the relevant regional government and the Indonesian Department of Energy and Mineral Resources ("DEMR"), and the payment of any required deposits, dead rent, government royalties, forestry fees, land and building tax and other levies to the Indonesian Government, or failure to comply with any applicable laws, could ultimately lead to termination of the IUPs and our loss of the rights to conduct mining activities under them.

While penalties and other civil or criminal sanctions are not applicable to breaches of IUP conditions, non-compliance activities may lead to loss of the IUPs. Non-compliance with applicable mining, environmental, health, safety and other laws or requirements, may also constitute breaches of laws, regulations or rules which by themselves may lead to penalties and other civil or criminal sanctions.

We are not subject to any compliance requirements. We cannot provide assurance that the IUPs will not be subject to challenge or that the Indonesian Government will not vary the terms applicable to the IUPs by new regulations.

# We are subject to environmental laws in Indonesia

Due to the potential impact on the environment, mining activities are required to comply with various environmental standards and requirements set by Indonesian environmental law and regulations and to satisfy obligations under reclamation standards set by the Indonesian Government. The Indonesian Government may require the suspension or even ceasing of mining operations if there is evidence of failure to meet relevant environmental standards or reclamation obligations.

# We are subject to jurisdiction of the courts in Indonesia which may prevent shareholders from collecting damages from our assets.

Decisions of courts in Indonesia on matters of Indonesian law are not mandatorily or customarily binding on lower courts or in the same court in any subsequent case. Indonesian judges have very broad fact-finding powers and a high level of discretion in relation to which of those powers are exercised. The judgments of Indonesian courts are not systematically published and it is not possible to ensure a complete understanding of points of Indonesian law as interpreted and applied by the courts in Indonesia or in particular courts. Judges are often unfamiliar with sophisticated commercial or financial transactions, leading in practice to a lack of certainty in the interpretation and application of Indonesian law. Litigation in Indonesia may be protracted.

In addition, judgments of courts outside Indonesia, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States, are not enforceable in Indonesian courts due to the absence of any bilateral or multilateral treaties for reciprocal enforcement of judgments. Although judgments of courts outside Indonesia may be admissible as non-conclusive evidence of foreign law in proceedings before the Indonesian courts, the proceedings would need to be commenced anew in Indonesia. There is doubt as to whether Indonesian courts will enter judgments in original actions brought in Indonesian courts predicated solely upon the civil liability provisions of such foreign laws.

Although Indonesia is a party to the 1958 New York Convention on the Recognition and Enforcement of Foreign Arbitral Awards, the enforcement of any international arbitration award in Indonesia must still comply with the requirements of specific matters relating to domestic law, as permitted under the New York Convention. These requirements include registration of the award in Indonesia and a finding by the Chief Judge of the Central Jakarta District Court that enforcement of the award would not violate public policy in Indonesia, in addition, Indonesian debtors have been known to contest enforcement of arbitration awards in Indonesia. As long as an arbitration award does not contain elements that contradict Indonesian public policy, opposition to enforcement is typically initiated by parties facing enforcement and not from the Indonesian administrative and/or judicial authorities.

# We must comply with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

We are required to comply with the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which prohibits U.S. companies from engaging in bribery or other prohibited payments to foreign officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. Foreign companies, including some of our competitors, are not subject to these prohibitions.

# Risks Related to our Common Stock and This Offering

# We may not register or qualify our securities with any state agency pursuant to blue sky regulations.

The holders of our shares of common stock and persons who desire to purchase them in the future should be aware that there may be significant state law restrictions upon the ability of investors to resell our shares. We currently do not intend to and may not be able to qualify securities for resale in states which require shares to be qualified before they can be resold by our shareholders.

#### Investors may have difficulty in reselling their shares due to the lack of market.

Our common stock is not currently traded on any exchange, but is quoted on OTC Markets Pink marketplace under the trading symbol "BMXI." There is a limited trading market for our common stock. There is no guarantee that any significant market for our securities will ever develop. Further, the state securities laws may make it difficult or impossible to resell our shares in certain states. Accordingly, our securities should be considered highly illiquid.

#### If securities or industry analysts publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our stock price could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our business. If one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our common stock or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our common stock price would likely decline.

# Our stock price may be volatile, which may result in losses to our stockholders.

The stock markets have experienced significant price and trading volume fluctuations, and the market prices of companies quoted on the OTC Markets' Pink Market, where our shares of common stock is quoted, generally have been very volatile and have experienced sharp share-price and trading-volume changes. The trading price of our common stock is likely to be volatile and could fluctuate widely in response to many of the following factors, some of which are beyond our control:

- variations in our operating results;
- · changes in expectations of our future financial performance, including financial estimates by securities analysts and investors;
- changes in operating and stock price performance of other companies in our industry;
- · additions or departures of key personnel; and
- future sales of our common stock.

Domestic and international stock markets often experience significant price and volume fluctuations. These fluctuations, as well as general economic and political conditions unrelated to our performance, may adversely affect the price of our common stock. In particular, following initial public offerings, the market prices for stocks of companies often reach levels that bear no established relationship to the operating performance of these companies. These market prices are generally not sustainable and could vary widely. In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a public company's securities, securities class action litigation has often been initiated.

Our common shares are thinly-traded, and in the future, may continue to be thinly-traded, and you may be unable to sell at or near ask prices or at all if you need to sell your shares to raise money or otherwise desire to liquidate such shares.

We cannot predict the extent to which an active public market for our common stock will develop or be sustained due to a number of factors, including the fact that we are a small company that is relatively unknown to stock analysts, stock brokers, institutional investors, and others in the investment community that generate or influence sales volume, and that even if we came to the attention of such persons, they tend to be risk-averse and would be reluctant to follow an unproven company such as ours or purchase or recommend the purchase of our shares until such time as we became more seasoned and viable. As a consequence, there may be periods of several days or more when trading activity in our shares is minimal or non-existent, as compared to a seasoned issuer which has a large and steady volume of trading activity that will generally support continuous sales without an adverse effect on share price. We cannot give you any assurance that a broader or more active public trading market for our common stock will develop or be sustained, or that current trading levels will be sustained. You may be unable to sell your common stock at or above your purchase price if at all, which may result in substantial losses to you. As a consequence of this lack of liquidity, the trading of relatively small quantities of shares by our stockholders may disproportionately influence the price of those shares in either direction. The price for our shares could, for example, decline precipitously in the event that a large number of our common shares are sold on the market without commensurate demand, as compared to a seasoned issuer that could better absorb those sales without adverse impact on its share price. Secondly, an investment in us is a speculative or "risky" investment due to our lack of revenues or profits to date. As a consequence of this enhanced risk, more risk-adverse investors may, under the fear of losing all or most of their investment in the event of negative news or lack of progress, be more inclined to sell thei

# We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends.

We presently do not anticipate that we will pay any dividends on any of our capital stock in the foreseeable future. The payment of dividends, if any, would be contingent upon our revenues and earnings, if any, capital requirements, and general financial condition. The payment of any dividends will be within the discretion of our Board of Directors. We presently intend to retain all earnings, if any, to implement our business plan; accordingly, we do not anticipate the declaration of any dividends in the foreseeable future.

# Our common stock may be subject to penny stock rules, which may make it more difficult for our stockholders to sell their common stock.

Broker-dealer practices in connection with transactions in "penny stocks" are regulated by certain penny stock rules adopted by the SEC. Penny stocks generally are equity securities with a price of less than \$5.00 per share. The penny stock rules require a broker-dealer, prior to a purchase or sale of a penny stock not otherwise exempt from the rules, to deliver to the customer a standardized risk disclosure document that provides information about penny stocks and the risks in the penny stock market. The broker-dealer also must provide the customer with current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, the compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson in the transaction, and monthly account statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer's account. In addition, the penny stock rules generally require that prior to a transaction in a penny stock the broker-dealer make a special written determination that the penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser's written agreement to the transaction. These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing the level of trading activity in the secondary market for a stock that becomes subject to the penny stock rules.

# Our principal stockholders and management own a significant percentage of our stock and will be able to exert significant control over matters subject to stockholder approval.

Certain of our executive officers, directors and large stockholders own a significant percentage of our outstanding capital stock. Accordingly, our directors and executive officers have significant influence over our affairs due to their substantial ownership coupled with their positions on our management team and have substantial voting power to approve matters requiring the approval of our stockholders. For example, these stockholders may be able to control elections of directors, amendments of our organizational documents, or approval of any merger, sale of assets, or other major corporate transaction. This concentration of ownership may prevent or discourage unsolicited acquisition proposals or offers for our common stock that some of our stockholders may believe is in their best interest.

# We have broad discretion in the use of the net proceeds from this offering and may not use them effectively.

Our management will have broad discretion in the application of the net proceeds and may spend or invest these proceeds in a way with which our stockholders disagree. The failure by our management to apply these funds effectively could harm our business and financial condition. Pending their use, we may invest the net proceeds from this offering in a manner that does not produce income or that loses value.

#### The offering price of our shares has been arbitrarily determined.

Our management has determined the shares offered by the Company. The price of the shares we are offering was arbitrarily determined based upon the current market value, illiquidity and volatility of our common stock, our current financial condition and the prospects for our future cash flows and earnings, and market and economic conditions at the time of the offering. The offering price for the common stock sold in this offering may be more or less than the fair market value for our common stock.

# Purchasers of our common stock may experience immediate dilution and/or future dilution.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to cause us to issue additional shares of common stock without consent of any of our stockholders. Consequently, the common stockholders may experience dilution in their ownership of our stock in the future and as a result of this offering.

# SPECIAL INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Offering Circular contains forward-looking statements, which statements involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements generally relate to future events or our future financial or operating performance. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements because they contain words such as "may," "will," "should," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "could," "intends," "target," "projects," "contemplates," "believes," "estimates," "predicts," "potential" or "continue" or the negative of these words or other similar terms or expressions that concern our expectations, strategy, plans or intentions. Forward-looking statements contained in this Offering Circular include, but are not limited to, statements about:

- estimates of our expenses, future revenue, capital requirements and our needs for additional financing;
- our ability to develop, acquire, and advance services and products for our customer base;
- the implementation of our business model and strategic plans for our business
- the terms of future licensing, operational or management arrangements, and whether we can enter into such arrangements at all;
- timing and receipt or revenues, if any;
- the scope of protection we are able to establish and maintain for intellectual property rights and our ability to operate our business without infringing the intellectual property rights of others;
- regulatory developments in the United States;
- our ability to maintain and establish collaborations or obtain additional funding;
- our use of proceeds from this offering;
- our financial performance; and
- developments and projections relating to our competitors and our industry.

We caution you that the forward-looking statements highlighted above do not encompass all of the forward-looking statements made in this Subscription Booklet. Further, we cannot assure you that the results, events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or occur, and actual results, events or circumstances could differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements. We may not actually achieve the plans, intentions or expectations disclosed in our forward-looking statements and you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements.

We undertake no obligation to update and revise any forward-looking statements or to publicly announce the result of any revisions to any of the forward-looking statements in this document to reflect any future or developments. However, the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 is not available to us as a non-reporting issuer. Further, Section 27A(b)(2)(D) of the Securities Act and Section 21E(b)(2)(D) of the Securities Exchange Act expressly state that the safe harbor for forward looking statements does not apply to statements made in connection with an initial public offering.

# DETERMINATION OF OFFERING PRICE

Our Offering Price is arbitrary with no relation to value of the Company. This Offering is a self-underwritten offering, which means that it does not involve the participation of an underwriter to market, distribute or sell the Common Stock offered under this offering.

If the maximum amount of 25,000,000 are sold under this Offering, the purchasers under this Offering will own 25% of the issued and outstanding shares common stock.

#### DILUTION

Investors in this offering will experience immediate dilution, as exampled below, from the sale of shares by the Company. If you invest in our shares, your interest will be diluted to the extent of the difference between the public offering price per share of our common stock and the as adjusted net tangible book value per share of our capital stock after this offering. Net tangible book value per share represents our total tangible assets less total liabilities, divided by the number of shares of common stock outstanding. Net tangible book value dilution per share of common stock to new investors represents the difference between the amount per share paid by purchasers in this offering and the as adjusted net tangible book value per share of common stock immediately after completion of this offering.

As of August 31, 2023, our net tangible book value was estimated at approximately \$6,961,000, or approximately \$0.55 per share. After giving effect to our sale of the maximum offering amount of \$1,000,000 in securities, assuming no other changes since August 31, 2020, our as-adjusted net tangible book value would be approximately \$16,961,000, or \$0.75 per share. At an offering price of \$0.20 per share, this represents an immediate dilution in net tangible book value of \$0.25 per share to investors of this offering, as illustrated in the following table:

Public offering price range per share	\$	.020 to .060
Net tangible book value per share	\$	0.47
Change in net tangible book value per share attributable to nev	W	
investors	\$	.0170
Adjusted net tangible book value per share after offering	\$	0.49
Dilution per share to new investors in the offering	\$	0.25

The above calculations are based on 75,453,370 common shares issued and outstanding as of December 28, 2023 before adjustments and 100,453,370 common shares to be outstanding after adjustment, assuming the offering complete without additional shares issued, assets acquired or liabilities incurred.

# PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Currently, we plan to have our directors and executive officers sell the Shares offered by the Company on our behalf. They will receive no discounts or commissions. Our executive officers will deliver this circular to those persons who they believe might have interest in purchasing all or a part of this offering. The Company may generally solicit investors, including, but not limited to, the use of social media, newscasts, advertisements, roadshows and the like.

As of the date of this circular, we have not entered into any arrangements with any selling agents for the sale of the securities; however, may engage one or more selling agents to sell the securities in the future. If we elect to do so, we will file a supplement to this circular to identify them.

Our directors and officers will not register as broker-dealers under Section 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in reliance upon Rule 3a4-1. Rule 3a4-1 sets forth those conditions under which a person associated with an issuer may participate in the offering of the issuer's securities and not be deemed to be a broker-dealer. The conditions are that:

- the person is not statutorily disqualified, as that term is defined in Section 3(a)(39) of the Act, at the time of his participation; and
- the person is not at the time of their participation an associated person of a broker-dealer; and
- the person meets the conditions of paragraph (a)(4)(ii) of Rule 3a4-1 of the Exchange Act, in that he (i) primarily performs, or is intended primarily to perform at the end of the offering, substantial duties for or on behalf of the issuer otherwise than in connection with transactions in securities; and (ii) is not a broker or dealer, or an associated person of a broker or dealer, within the preceding 12 months; and (iii) does not participate in selling and offering of securities for any issuer more than once every 12 months other than in reliance on paragraphs (a)(4)(i) or (a)(4)(iii) of Rule 3a4-1 of the Exchange Act.

Our officers and directors are not statutorily disqualified, are not being compensated, and are not associated with a broker-dealer. They are and will continue to hold their positions as officers or directors following the completion of the offering and have not been during the past 12 months and are currently not brokers or dealers or associated with brokers or dealers. They have not nor will they participate in the sale of securities of any issuer more than once every 12 months.

Our common stock is not now listed on any national securities exchange or the NASDAQ stock market. However, our stock is quoted on the OTC Market's Pink Market under the symbol "BMXI." While our common stock is on the Pink Market, there has been limited trading volume. There is no guarantee that an active trading market will develop in our securities. Accordingly, our shares should be considered highly illiquid, which inhibits investors' ability to resell their shares.

Upon this circular being qualified by the SEC, the Company may offer and sell shares from time to time until all of the shares registered are sold; however, this offering will terminate one year from the qualification date of this amended circular, unless extended or terminated by the Company. The Company may terminate this offering at any time and may also extend the offering term by 90 days.

There can be no assurances that the Company will sell any or all of the securities. In various states, the securities may not be sold unless these securities have been registered or qualified for sale in such state or an exemption from registration or qualification is available and is complied with. All shares will be offered on a "best efforts" basis.

All of the foregoing and following may affect the marketability of our securities. Should any fundamental change occur regarding the status or other matters concerning us, we will file an amendment to this circular disclosing such matters.

Generally, no sale may be made to you in this offering if the aggregate purchase price you pay is more than 10% of the greater of your annual income or net worth. Different rules apply to accredited investors and non-natural persons. Before making any representation that your investment does not exceed applicable thresholds, we encourage you to review Rule 251(d)(2)(i)(C) of Regulation A. For general information on investing, we encourage you to refer to www.investor.gov.

We are offering up to 25,000,000 shares of our common stock on a price range for \$0.02 to \$0.06 per share, assuming the offering price is \$0.02 per share for a total of up to \$500,000 in gross offering proceeds, assuming all securities are sold. There is no minimum investment established for investors and no minimum offering amount. We may sell significantly fewer shares of common stock than those offered hereby. All accepted subscription funds will be immediately available for the Company's use. The Company may, in its sole discretion, choose to accept the cancellation of debt owed by the Company as consideration for shares of common stock offered hereby. Any common shares sold for debt cancellation shall be subject to the same terms and conditions as other Shares sold hereunder, including the purchase price for such Shares.

All subscription agreements and checks are irrevocable until accepted or rejected by the Company and should be delivered to the Company at the address provided in the subscription agreement. A subscription agreement executed by a subscriber is not binding on the Company until it is accepted on our behalf by the Company's CEO or by specific resolution of our Board of Directors. The Company may accept or reject any subscription, in whole or in part, in its sole discretion.

The Company will deliver stock certificates to the purchasers within five days from request by a shareholder; otherwise shareholders' shares may be noted and held on the book records of the Company.

We will not apply for "blue sky" registration in any state. If applicable, the shares may not be offered or sold in certain jurisdictions unless they comply with the applicable securities laws of such jurisdictions by exemption, qualification or otherwise. We intend to sell the shares only in the states in which an exemption from the registration requirements is available, and purchases of shares may be made only in those states.

#### OTC Markets Considerations

The OTC Markets is separate and distinct from the NASDAQ stock market or other national exchange. NASDAQ has no business relationship with issuers of securities quoted on the OTC Markets. The SEC's order handling rules, which apply to NASDAQ-listed securities, do not apply to securities quoted on the OTC Markets.

Although the NASDAQ and other national stock markets have rigorous listing standards to ensure the high quality of their issuers, and can delist issuers for not meeting those standards; the OTC Markets has no listing standards. Rather, it is the market maker who chooses to quote a security on the system, files the application, and is obligated to comply with keeping information about the issuer in its files.

Although we believe being listed on the OTC Markets increases liquidity for our stock, investors may have greater difficulty in getting orders filled than if we were on NASDAQ or other exchange. Investors' orders may be filled at a price much different than expected when an order is placed. Trading activity in general is not conducted as efficiently and effectively on OTC Markets as with exchange-listed securities. Also, because OTC Markets stocks are usually not followed by analysts, there may be lower trading volume than for NASDAQ-listed securities.

Investors must contact a broker-dealer to trade OTC Markets securities. Investors do not have direct access to the quotation service. For OTC Markets securities, there only has to be one market maker.

# **USE OF PROCEEDS**

The following table illustrates the amount of net proceeds to be received by the Company on the sale of shares by the Company and the intended uses of such proceeds over an approximate 12 month period. It is possible that the Company may not raise the entire \$500,000 in shares being offered through this Offering Circular. In such case, it will reallocate its use of proceeds as the board of directors deems to be in the best interests of the Company in order to effectuate its business plan. The intended use of proceeds are as follows:

**Percentage of Maximum Offering** 

	100%		75%		50%		25%
Gross Offering Proceeds	\$ 500,000	\$	375,000	\$	250,000	\$	125,000
Offering Costs(1)	\$ 50,000	\$	50,000	\$	50,000	\$	50,000
Use of Net Proceeds:							
Expansion of Production US/Can.	\$ 250,000	\$	175,500	\$	75,000	\$	
Working Capital	\$ 200,000	\$	150,000	\$	125,000	\$	75,000

(1) The Company expects to spend approximately \$50,000 in expenses relating to this offering, including legal, accounting, travel, printing and other misc.

# **DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS**

Brookmount Explorations, Inc. (the "Company," "we," "us," and "our") was organized in 1999 and is incorporated in Nevada. The Company was organized for the purpose of acquiring, exploring and developing mineral properties.

Effective January 30, 2018, pursuant to a Securities Exchange Agreement dated as of January 16, 2018 (the "Exchange Agreement") between Brookmount Explorations, Inc. (the "Company") and the stockholders (the "SL Stockholders") of SL Group Holdings, Limited, a British Virgin Island corporation ("SL"), the SL Stockholders exchanged all of the shares of capital stock of SL for 120,000,000 shares of the Common Stock of the Company (the "Exchanged Shares"), and the Company's Series A Convertible Notes. As a result of the Share Exchange, SL became a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company, which on a going forward basis will result in consolidated financial reporting by Brookmount Explorations, Inc. to include the results of SL Group Holdings, Limited. The closing of the Share Exchange occurred concurrently with entry into the Share Exchange Agreement and resulted in a change of control for the Company.

SL was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands as a holding company for strategic, high growth mineral investments in South East Asia, particularly Indonesia and the Philippines, the region's most dynamic growth economies with high levels of natural resources and stable democratic political systems.

The Company has its registered office in Reno NV and has offices in Alberta Canada, Manado Indonesia and Melbourne Australia. The US office of the Company is located at 1 East Liberty, Reno NV 89501 and our telephone number is (775) 2345221.

The Company is currently authorized to issue 200,000,000 shares of common stock, \$0.001 par value. As of December 28, 2023, we had approximately 75,453,370 common shares issued and outstanding held by approximately 290 holders of record. Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTC Market's Pink Market under the symbol "BMXI."

The Company's securities are currently quoted on OTC Markets Pink marketplace. There is a limited market for the shares included in this offering.

# **Business**

Brookmount Explorations, Inc. is an operator of producing gold properties in the Republic of Indonesia. SL Holdings Ltd., the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, currently operates 2 gold producing properties in in Minahasa Regency of Sulawesi province, one of Indonesia's most significant areas of gold mineralization having been largely surveyed, assessed and operated by Newmont Mining, one of the world's largest gold mining conglomerates.

The Company has invested approximately \$2 million in acquiring and developing its operations to date. Our operating partner in the Talawaan facility manages operations on a day to day basis, whilst production at Alason is currently suspended following Covid shutdowns in 2020.

Both the Company's Talawaan and Alason investments are covered by 20 year operating agreements supported by local mining and forestry authorities operating permits and licenses. In keeping with its status as a "local investor", the Company maintains close working relationships with local authorities and agencies.

#### Market Strategy

Brookmount's operating strategy is twofold: to build a portfolio of high ore grade, fully licensed properties which carry relevant operating permits and are either in, or can be readily brought up to production, and; acquire high quality gold concessions with potentially significant confirmed and /or probable reserves which can be confirmed, to international standards, by relevant JORC or 43/101 drilling analysis.

Brookmounts' bifurcated strategy enables the Company to build a portfolio of high-quality gold assets and recycle operating cash flow into expanding its facilities and ore deposits, greatly accelerating its growth trajectory and expansion of its reserve portfolio. The Company will acquire high quality gold concessions and invest in drilling programs to bring reserves up to JORC standards, thus strengthening its balance sheet and increasing shareholder value.

# Competition

The mining industry is acutely competitive in all of its phases. We face strong competition from other mining companies in connection with the acquisition of exploration stage properties or properties containing gold reserves. Many of these companies have greater financial resources, operational experience and technical capabilities than us. It is our gold to develop a "land bank" of assets to buy and sell assets and mine gold with strategic partners. This will allow us to source gold from our properties to purchasers quickly and efficiently. It is the Company's intention to identify strategic partners to coordinate construction of gold mining infrastructure for concessions acquired. Ultimately, it is the Company's intention to identify and negotiate with strategic partners to coordinate and pay for feasibility studies, construction of gold mining infrastructure and mining operations for concessions acquired. By working with select strategic partners and using limited recourse project financing, we anticipate we will be able to compete with larger companies with greater resources.

# **Employees**

We currently have a total of 50 full time employees and up to 100 part time (contract) employees. We have and will also engage independent contractors to provide professional services.

# Management

Key shareholders and management of the Company comprise a highly experienced team with backgrounds in manufacturing and distribution, mining, finance and accounting, banking and transportation.

Most importantly, the team, being predominantly Asian based, has collectively several decades of experience in the region and enjoys strong relationships with key local players in markets such as Indonesia and Australia which will be the growth drivers for the next 5 years.

# **Government Regulation**

On January 12, 2009, Law No 4 of 2009 on Mineral and Coal Mining (the "Mining Law") came into effect. The Mining Law replaced Law No 11 of 1967 (the "Old Mining Law") and made significant changes to Indonesia's mining regulatory regime which operated for more than 40 years. Under the Old Mining Law, mining activities were permitted to be carried out under a mining authorization known as Kuasa Pertambangan (KP). There are a number of transitional issues relating to KPs issued under the Old Mining Law.

The Mining Law now provides for new forms of mining rights known as:

- Mining Business Permits (Izin Usaha Pertambangan IUP) basic permits for conducting a mining enterprise within a commercial mining area; and
- Special Mining Business Permits (Izin Usaha Pertambangan Khusus IUPK) permits for conducting a mining enterprise within a state reserve area.

State reserve areas will be determined by the government based on the government's desire to reserve an area for national strategic needs or to conserve certain properties based on a need to protect the ecosystem or environment. The Company does not have any mining enterprises within a state reserve area.

For IUPs that are not "conversions" from KPs, every holder of an IUP will first need to obtain a Mining Business Permit Area (Wilayah Izin Usaha Pertambangan – WIUP) subject to prescribed minimum and maximum limits:

- · An Exploration IUP, which authorizes the holder to conduct general survey, exploration and feasibility studies; and
- Production Operation IUP, which authorizes the holder to conduct construction, mining, processing and purification, hauling and selling.

Under the Mining Law, an IUP holder is only allowed to hold one IUP. However, transitional provisions in Government Regulation No 23 of 2010 allow mining concession holders who held more than one concession before the enforcement of Mining Law, to convert those concessions to IUPs and hold on to them until expiration (subject to compliance with the conditions of the IUPs and the prevailing laws and regulations). While a company can hold only one IUP, companies may have several different subsidiaries apply for several different IUPs. The Company may then, therefore, obtain new IUPs.

The current situation in relation to the Mining Law is that:

- KPs should have been converted to IUPs, as required under the implementing regulations; and
- IUPs in relation to new work areas are not yet being issued. This is because the Government is still considering what mining areas will be opened up for tendering.

We expect foreign investment in the Indonesian mining industry to increase on the back of continued efforts by the government to improve the country's regulatory framework as it seeks to increase revenues derived from mining activities. In compliance with Indonesian regulations the Company, through Indonesian counsel, is filing a foreign investment approval application for all concession acquisitions in Indonesia. We do not expect the Mining Law, and the changes enacted, to impact our operations.

# **Environmental Regulations**

On October 3, 2009, the Indonesian Government passed Law No 32 of 2009 regarding Environmental Protection and Management (the "Environmental Law"), replacing Law No 23 of 1997 on Environmental Management (the "Old Environment Law"). Under the Environmental Law, every business activity having significant impact on the environment (like mining operations) is required to carry out an environmental impact assessment (known as an AMDAL). Based on the assessment of the AMDAL by the Commission of AMDAL Assessment, the Minister, Governor, or Mayor/Regent (in accordance with their respective authority) must specify a decree of environmental feasibility. The decree of environmental feasibility is used as the basis for the issuance of an environmental license by the Minister, Governor, or Mayor/Regent (as applicable). The environmental license is a pre-requisite to obtaining the relevant business license. One of the business activities that must have an AMDAL is the exploitation of mineral resources. The Minister for Environmental Affairs is responsible for issuing a list of the types of businesses which must produce an AMDAL as a pre-requisite to being licensed.

There are only a few implementing regulations that have been issued in relation to the Environmental Law. As a result, the implementing regulations of the Old Environment Law still apply in some circumstances, to the extent that they do not contradict the Environmental Law. Under the Old Environmental Law and its implementing regulations: (a) an AMDAL is not required to be prepared for general survey and exploration activities; and (b) an AMDAL must be prepared and approved in order for a business to enter into the exploitation (operation and production) phase. Projects (or sub-projects) which are not required to produce an AMDAL may nevertheless still be required to produce Environmental Management Efforts (UKL) and Environmental Monitoring Efforts (UPL). Technical guidelines announced by the Minister of Energy and Mineral Resources state that regional governments are responsible for approving AMDALs in their respective jurisdictions and for supervising environmental management and the monitoring efforts of an IUP holder.

Further details regarding AMDAL requirements are set out in Government Regulation No 27 of 1999 on Environmental Impact Assessment, which is the implementing regulation of the Old Environment Law. Under the Old Environment Law and its implementing regulations, an AMDAL consists of several components, namely: (a) a framework of reference document used to establish the framework for the AMDAL (KA-ANDAL); (b) an environmental impact analysis report (ANDAL); (c) an environmental management plan (RKL); and (d) an environmental monitoring plan (RPL). Although the components of an AMDAL have not been specified, the Environmental Law stipulates that an AMDAL document must contain the following: (a) an assessment of the impact of the business activities plan; (b) an evaluation of the activities in the area surrounding the location of the business; (c) feedback from the community on the business activities plan; (d) an estimation of the impact and significance of the impact that may occur if the business activities plan is implemented; which a holistic evaluation of the impact that may occur to determine the environmental feasibility; and (f) an environmental management and monitoring plan. In addition to the requirement to obtain an environmental license, every business and/or activity that has the potential to cause a significant impact on the environment, a threat to the ecosystem and life, and/or human health and safety must also conduct an environmental risk analysis. A number of other regulations also apply to mining operations, requiring operators to obtain licenses for the disposal of waste and toxic or hazardous materials.

We do not expect the Environmental Law, and the changes enacted, to impact our operations.

# **Legal Proceedings**

We are not aware of any pending legal proceedings, to which we are a party or of which any of our property is the subject, nor are we aware of any such proceedings that are contemplated by any governmental authority. From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time and harm our business.

# **DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY**

# **Office Properties**

The principal executive offices of the Company are located in Reno, Nevada, and are leased by the Company on a serviced office basis.

The company made its first investment in northern Indonesia in 2018 and now owns two gold mining operations in Minahasa Regency of Sulawesi province, one of Indonesia's most significant areas of gold mineralization having been largely surveyed, assessed and operated by Newmont Mining, one of the world's largest gold mining conglomerates.

# Talawaan Facility:

A 50 hectare reserve and onsite processing facility located in a high grade volcanic hosted sediment body in the district of Talawaan, adjacent to the airport at Manado, regional capital. This facility, which has been in operation for over 10 years was recently renovated and upgraded and comprises over 50 ball mills (ore crushers), 5 high capacity floatation tanks, tailing ponds and off site smelting operations. Ore is excavated at shallow depth, from strategic locations on the property based on existing ore distribution data as well as onsite drill tests. Geologist estimates put remaining gold reserves on this property at over 50,000oz pecialrox. \$100mm at current gold prices. The facility also processes ore from 3<sup>rd</sup> party mining operations on a contract basis contributing up to 35% of monthly revenue.

Processing at Talawaan is using traditional ball mills to reduce the the size of ore particles and floatation tanks for the separation and cyanidation process. Final smelting process for both operations is similar. The offsite smelting facilities are wholly owned and capable of refining gold both to phase 1 ("dore" of 60-75% purity) and phase 2 (investment grade) gold of 99% purity.

The following satellite image indicates the location of the Talawaan facility.



Additionally, the below map shows the current property and facilities layout.



# **Alason Facility:**

An area of approximately 17 hectares of high grade volcanic ore body in a rich mineralization area about 3 hours west of Manado. The Company, through its Taiwanese joint venture partner, has constructed state of the art heap leaching facilities on this site, together with tailing ponds, carbon filtration unit, power generation and plumbing facilities, water storage, worker accommodation and office facilities. Under the joint venture agreement, the Taiwanese partner assumes full responsibility for costs of building and operating leach pad facilities. Net revenue from production is shared between the parties on a 30/70 basis. To date 2 leach pads (and associated infrastructure) have been constructed with total processing capacity of 42,000 tonnes of ore. Initial processing took place in February 2020, producing approximately 280oz of (99%) pure gold.

Heap leaching technology is a low impact form of gold mining typically utilized in areas of volcanic mineralization, where ore is shallow depth, soft volcanic soil and can be extracted through excavation rather than the more destructive and expensive shaft mining with the ore leached of minerals through continuous irrigation on a football sized pad.

The process is self contained and has a low environmental impact, especially important in ecologically sensitive rainforest

The following satellite image shows the location of the Alason facility.



Additionally, the below map shows the current property and facilities layout.



We believe that our existing facilities are adequate for our present purposes. Additionally, the Company plans to use the proceeds from this offering to acquire gold and JORC reserve area and production infrastructure in major gold markets including and North America, and to expand the production at Indonesian Facilities.

# MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

#### General

On January 30, 2018, the Company entered into a securities exchange agreement with the stockholder of SL Group Holdings, Limited. As a result of the share exchange, SL Group Holdings, Limited became a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company is headquartered in Reno, NV and is an operator of producing gold properties in the Republic of Indonesia. Additionally, the Company owns a production area of approximately 500 HA, together will various equipment and fixed assets on site, in Canada, close to the Alaska border, in the Tintina Gold Belt, and a smaller property of approximately 50 HA, which is located in MacArthur Creek area on the Alaska side of the Tintina Gold Belt. The Company is planning to bring these two properties in North America into production in 2024. The Company seeks opportunities to acquire and operate mining areas and facilities that possess strong values and that can generate long-term sustainable free cash flow and attractive returns in order to maximize value for all stakeholders.

# **Results of Operations**

The following analysis on results of operations was based primarily on the Brookmount Explorations, Inc.'s financial statements, footnotes and related information for the periods identified below and should be read in conjunction with the unaudited financial statements and the notes to those statements for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the years ended November 30, 2022 and 2021.

# Results of operations for three and nine months ended August 31, 2023 and 2022 (unaudited)

# Revenue

The Company had revenues of \$4,850,000 and \$14,015,000 for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2023, respectively, as compared with \$4,530,000 and \$13,156,000 for the same periods in 2022, respectively. The increase was primarily due to the increase in production and in the price of gold during the period.

# Cost of Sales

The Company had cost of sales in the amount of \$1,697,000 and \$4,697,000 for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2023, respectively, as compared with \$1,463,000 and \$4,321,000 for the same periods in 2022, respectively. The increase was mainly due to the increase in cost of raw materials.

# **Operating Expenses**

The Company had operating expenses of \$458,000 and \$1,425,000 for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2023, respectively, as compared with \$490,000 and \$1,488,000 for the same periods in 2022, respectively. The increase was mainly due to the increase in depreciation and amortization expense, and selling, general, and administrative expense.

# Other Expense

For the three and nine months ended August 31, 2023, other expenses were \$22,000 and \$56,000, respectively, as compared with \$16,000 and \$50,000 for the same periods in 2022, respectively. The increase was mainly due to increase in interest expense 2023.

#### Income Tax Expense

The Company had income tax provision of \$85,000 and \$913,000 for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2023, respectively, as compared with \$125,000 and \$1,025,000 for the same periods in 2022, respectively. The increase was mainly due to an increase in provision to cover possible tax liability generated on increased net income.

#### Net Income

The Company had net income of \$2,673,000 and \$7,837,000 for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2023, respectively, as compared with \$2,436,000 and \$7,172,000 for the same periods in 2022, respectively. The increase was mainly due to the improved operating margins as ore processed during the period was of a higher grade.

# **Liquidity and Capital Resources**

# Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operating activities was \$2,408,000 for the nine months ended August 31, 2023, compared to \$6,212,000 during the same period in 2022. The positive cash flow from operation during the nine months ended August 31, 2023 was due primarily to net income of \$6,924,000, plus non-cash expenses including \$202,000 of depreciation and amortization expense, \$786,000 in share based payments the increase in accounts payable by \$189,000, the increase in inventory by \$300,000 offset by decrease in non-affiliate receivable and tax provision by \$4,318,000 and \$1,075,000, respectively. Comparatively, the positive cash flow from operation during the nine months ended August 31, 2022 was due primarily to net income of \$6,272,000, plus non-cash expenses including \$299,000 of depreciation and amortization expense, the increase in non-affiliate receivable by \$640,000, and the decrease in accounts payable by \$125,000, offset by the decrease in inventory and tax provision by \$125,000 and \$820,000, respectively.

# Investing Activities

During the nine months ended August 31, 2023, net cash used in investing activities was \$3,602,000 due to the purchase of property and equipment in amount of \$2,952,000 and payments for land usage rights of \$650,000. During the nine months ended August 31, 2022, net cash used in investing activities was \$6,599,000 due to payments of \$2,399,000 and \$4,200,000 for property and equipment and land usage right and investment respectively.

# Financing Activities

During the nine months ended August 31, 2023, net cash provided by financing activities was \$1,076,000 due to the proceeds from convertible notes and share issuance. During the nine months ended August 31, 2022, net cash provided by financing activities was \$769,000 due to the proceeds from by convertible notes and share issuance.

# Results of operations for years ended November 30, 2022 and 2021 (unaudited)

#### Revenue

For the years ended November 30, 2022 and 2021, revenues were \$16,356,000 and \$14,070,000, respectively. The increase was primarily due to the increases in production and increase in gold price.

#### Cost of Sales

For the years ended November 30, 2022 and 2021, cost of sales were \$5,421,000 and \$4,292,000, respectively. The increase was mainly due to the increase in mining and exploration expense.

# **Operating Expenses**

For the years ended November 30, 2022 and 2021, operating expenses were \$2,125,000 and \$2,010,000, respectively. The increase was mainly due to the increase in depreciation and amortization while selling, general and administrative expense, such as consulting expense, professional fee, and etc remain relatively comparable.

#### Income Tax

For the years ended November 30, 2022 and 2021, provision for income taxes were \$1,250,000 and \$1,100,000, respectively. The increase was mainly due to the increase in income from continuing operations.

# Net Income

For the years ended November 30, 2022 and 2021, net income were \$7,498,000 and \$6,650,000, respectively. The increase was mainly due to the increase in production and gold price

# **Liquidity and Capital Resources**

# Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operating activities was \$3,608,000 for year ended November 30, 2022, compared to \$2,564,000 during the year ended November 30, 2021. The positive cash flow from operation during the year ended November 30, 2022, was due primarily to net income of \$7,498,000, plus non-cash expenses of \$394,000 in depreciation and amortization expense, and the decrease in in inventory, accounts payable and non-affiliate loans by \$2,075,000, \$49,000 and \$2,492,000, respectively, offset by the increase tax payable by \$325,000. Comparatively, the positive cash flow from operation during the year ended November 30, 2021, was due primarily to net income of \$6,550,000, plus non-cash expenses of \$252,000 in depreciation and amortization expense, and the decrease in inventory and non-affiliate loans by \$901,000 and \$3,963,000 respectively, offset by the increase in accounts payable and tax payable by \$306,000 and \$250,000, respectively.

#### Investing Activities

During the year ended November 30, 2022, net cash used in investing activities was \$4,294,000 due to the purchase of property and equipment for \$2,744,000 and payments of \$1,5500,000 for land usage right. During the year ended November 30, 2021, net cash used in investing activities was \$2,982,000 due to purchase of property and equipment for \$482,000 and payments for land usage right of \$2,500,000.

#### Financing Activities

During the year ended November 30, 2022, net cash provided by financing activities was \$807,000 due to the proceeds from convertible notes and share issuance offset by loan repayments. During the year ended November 30, 2021, net cash provided by financing activities was \$315,000 due to the proceeds from convertible notes and share issuance.

We had cash on hand of \$65,000 and a working capital deficit of \$122,000 as of August 31, 2020. On the short-term basis, we will be required to raise a significant amount of additional funds over the next 12 months to sustain operations. On the long-term basis, we will potentially need to raise capital to grow and develop our business. Additionally, we plan to initiate an equity offering under Regulation A during the second quarter of 2021 to attempt to raise additional equity capital. If successful, proceeds from this offering will be used to pay down debts and fund our working capital.

#### **Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements**

As of August 31, 2023 and November 30, 2022, the Company did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Securities Act of 1934.

#### DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

Our board of directors is elected annually by our shareholders. The board of directors elects our executive officers annually. Our directors and executive officers as of December 1, 2023 are as follows:

Name	Position	Age
Nils A. Ollquist	Chief Executive Officer, Director	67
Christopher Lim	Chief Financial Officer	51
Nicholas Medway	Non Executive Director	47
Errin Kimball	Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer	52
Frederick Kempson	Non-Executive Director	79

#### Nils A. Ollquist, age 67, Director & Chief Executive Officer

Nils Ollquist has over 35 years experience in international banking and corporate finance in Asia, the US, Europe and Australia. Mr Ollquist. Prior to setting up a corporate finance and advisory firm in Hong Kong in 1993, Mr Ollquist headed Asian Mergers & Acquisitions for Bank of America based in Hong Kong and prior to that held a number of senior corporate finance and advisory roles for international banks such as Barclays in Sydney, Amro Bank in Amsterdam and Security Pacific National Bank in Los Angeles and New York. Mr Ollquist has extensive business relationships in South East Asia, particularly Indonesia and, as a founding investor and major shareholder in SL Holdings, was instrumental in developing and maintaining the Company's Indonesian business. He holds degrees in Economics & Law from the Australian National University.

## Chris Lim age 51, Chief Financial Officer (to come)

Christopher Lim was appointed as Chief Financial Officer on September 1, 2020. Mr. Lim is a Practicing Chartered Accountant ("CPA") with over 20 years chartered accounting experience, including general accounting, audit and regulatory compliance services in leading accounting firms including Deloitte Touche and BDO. During his career, Mr Lim has acted as CFO for both US and Australian (ASX) listed companies. He holds undergraduate and postgraduate degrees in commerce and accounting from the University of Melbourne.

#### Nicholas Medway, age 47, Director

Nicholas Medway was appointed as Director in February 2018. Mr. Medway has worked in a number of public and private sector roles since 1995, including a senior executive role in a major telecommunications company prior to joining the Royal Australian Air Force as a commissioned officer and pilot serving until 2000. Since this time, he has largely worked within senior ranks of federal law enforcement pecializinging in criminal and regulatory compliance. Mr Medway has extensive experience in management, moving on from his role as a CEO in the private sector, to Enforcement Director of Border Force Australia.

#### Errin Kimball, age 51, Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer

Mr Kimball has over 3 decades in exploration and mining development, from conceptualization to mine closure and reclamation. Mr Kimball has served as Geological Technologist for Romarco Minerals, which was later acquired by Oceana Gold Corp for \$860 million. His role on the team for this transaction led to the discovery of the renown "Diavik" Rio Tinto Diamond Mine, Canada's second diamond mine with a production of over 100 million carats of high quality rough diamonds. Mr Kimball has also served in senior roles at Kennecott Canada (Rio Tinto) and Cominco Inc. As Chief Geologist for Synenco Energy, Mr Kimballs' team was credited with discovering 2.4 billion barrels of bitumen, leading to the acquisition of Synenco by Total of France for \$480 million.

Prior to his corporate career, Mr Kimball served as the Aggregate and Industrial minerals Geologist for the Alberta Geological Survey Department. He hold a BSc. In Geology from the University of Alberta and hold an Honours in Mineral Exploration Technology from the Northern Alberta Institute of Technology.

#### Frederick Kempson, age 79, Director.

Mr Kempson is a highly experienced international banker who has, during his career, headed a number of financial institutions in Australia including Australian Investment Finance Corporation, a joint venture between Mitsubishi Trust, ANZ Bank and Bank of Montreal, and Security Pacific National Bank in Australia. Mr Kempson is also highly experienced in the Australian resources sector, including coal, and precious metals. Mr Kempson is a director of Norseman Gold PLC (UK) and AHA Retail Partners PLC (UK).

#### **Family Relationships**

There are no family relationships among the members of our Board or our executive officers.

#### Composition of the Board

In accordance with our certificate of incorporation, our Board is elected annually as a single class.

#### **Director Independence**

The Board has determined that two of our directors are independent, Frederick Kempson and Nicholas Medway, as the term "independent" is defined by the rules of NASDAQ Rule 5605.

#### **Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings**

To the best of our knowledge, none of our directors or executive officers has been convicted in a criminal proceeding, excluding traffic violations or similar misdemeanors, or has been a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding during the past ten years that resulted in a judgment, decree or final order enjoining the person from future violations of, or prohibiting activities subject to, federal or state securities laws, or a finding of any violation of federal or state securities laws, except for matters that were dismissed without sanction or settlement. Except as set forth in our discussion below in "Related Party Transactions" none of our directors, director nominees or executive officers has been involved in any transactions with us or any of our directors, executive officers, affiliates or associates which are required to be disclosed pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC.

#### **Communications with our Board of Directors**

Our stockholders may send correspondence to our board of directors, c/o the Corporate Secretary at 1 East Liberty Suite 500. Reno, NV 89501. Our corporate secretary will forward stockholder communications to our board of directors prior to the board's next regularly scheduled meeting following the receipt of the communication.

#### **Corporate Governance**

The Company intends to seek additional members for its Board of Directors. In evaluating director nominees, our Company considers the following factors:

- The appropriate size of the Board;
- Our needs with respect to the particular talents and experience of our directors;
- The knowledge, skills and experience of nominees;
- · Experience with accounting rules and practices; and
- The nominees' other commitments.

Our Company's goal is to assemble a Board of Directors that brings our Company a variety of perspectives and skills derived from high quality business, professional and personal experience. Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for director nominees.

#### COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The table below summarizes all compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid to our executive officers and directors for all services rendered in all capacities to us during the last fiscal year ended November 30, 2023.

	Cash		Total
	compensation	Stock Awards	compensation
Name	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
Nils A. Ollquist, CEO & Director	100,000	1,250,000	100,000x
Christopher Lim, CEO & Director	50,000	500,000	50,000
Nicholas Medway, Director	XXXX	500,000	XXXX
Frederick Kempson, Director	XXXX	500,000	XXXX
Errin Kimball, COO & Director	90,000	1,250,000	90,000
(Officers and Directors as a group (5 persons)	240,000	2,750,000	240,000

No non-employee directors received any form of compensation during the years ended November 30, 2022. We do not have a compensation committee. Compensation for our directors and officers is determined by our board of directors.

**Executive Officer Compensation** 

Pending

Stock Option Plan

Pending

#### SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock by (i) each person who is known by the Company to own beneficially more than ten percent (10%) of our outstanding voting stock; (ii) each of our directors; (iii) each of our executive officers; and (iv) all of our current executive officers, significant employees and directors as a group, as of December 28, 2023.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and includes voting and/or investing power with respect to securities. These rules generally provide that shares of common stock subject to options, warrants or other convertible securities that are currently exercisable or convertible, or exercisable or convertible within 60 days of December 28, 2023, are deemed to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned by the person or group holding such options, warrants or other convertible securities for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of such person or group, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person or group.

Beneficial ownership as set forth below is based on our review of our record shareholders list and public ownership reports filed by certain shareholders of the Company, and may not include certain securities held in brokerage accounts or beneficially owned by the shareholders described below.

We believe that, except as otherwise noted and subject to applicable community property laws, each person named in the following table has sole investment and voting power with respect to the shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by such person. Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each of the officers or directors listed in the table below is 1 East liberty, Reno NV. As of December 28, 2023, we had approximately 75,453,370 outstanding shares of common stock.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Shares Beneficially Owned	Percentage
Officers and Directors Nils A Ollquist	1,250,000	1.7%
Errin Kimball	5,250,000	7.7%
Nicholas Medway	500,000	0.5%
Christopher Lim	500,000	0.5%
Frederick Kempson All officers and directors as a group (3 persons)	7,500,000	11.5%

The above tables are based upon information derived from our stock records. Except as otherwise indicated below and under applicable community property laws, we believe that the beneficial owners of our common stock listed below have sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares shown.

#### INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Except as described herein (or within the section entitled Executive Compensation of this prospectus or the Share Exchange), none of the following parties (each a "Related Party") has, in our fiscal years ended 2022 and 2021 or the current fiscal year, had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction with us or in any presently proposed transaction that has or will materially affect us:

- any of our directors or officers;
- any person who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, shares carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to our outstanding shares of common stock; or
- any member of the immediate family (including spouse, parents, children, siblings and in- laws) of any of the above persons.

SEC rules require us to disclose any transaction or currently proposed transaction in which we were a participant and in which any related person has or will have a direct or indirect material interest involving the lesser of \$120,000 or 1% of the average of our total assets as of the end of last two completed fiscal years. A related person is any executive officer, director, nominee for director, or holder of 5% or more of our Common Stock, or an immediate family member of any of those persons. The descriptions set forth above under the captions "The Exchange and Related Transactions—Exchange Agreement," "Executive Compensation—Employment and Related Agreements" and "—Director Compensation" and below under "Description of Securities—Options" are incorporated herein by reference.

The following is a description of transactions since January 1, 2018 to which we have been a party, in which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed \$120,000, and in which any of our directors, executive officers or holders of more than 5% of the Company's pre-Exchange capital stock (or pre-Exchange DSI's common stock), or an affiliate or immediate family member thereof, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than compensation and other arrangements that are described in the section titled "Executive Compensation." The following description is historical and has not been adjusted to give effect to the Exchange.

Loans from Related Parties, if any: None

Long-Term Debt to Related Parties: None

#### **Policies and Procedures for Related Party Transactions**

Our board of directors intends to adopt a written related person transaction policy, to set forth the policies and procedures for the review and approval or ratification of related person transactions. This policy will cover, with certain exceptions set forth in Item 404 of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Exchange Act, any transaction, arrangement or relationship, or any series of similar transactions, arrangements or relationships, in which we were or are to be a participant, where the amount involved exceeds or will exceed the lesser of \$125,900 or 1% of the average of the Company's total assets as of the end of the last two completed fiscal years and a related person had, has or will have a direct or indirect material interest, including purchases of goods or services by or from the related person or entities in which the related person has a material interest, indebtedness, guarantees of indebtedness and employment by us of a related person.

#### SECURITIES BEING OFFERED

This circular relates to the sale of 25,000,000 shares of our common stock by the Company on a price range for \$0.02 to \$0.06 per share, assuming the offering price is \$0.02 per share for total offering proceeds of \$500,000 if all offered shares are sold. There is no minimum investment established for investors and no minimum offering amount. There is no provision to escrow or return investor funds if any minimum number of shares is not sold. All funds raised by the Company from this offering will be immediately available for the Company's use.

We have authorized capital stock consisting of 200,000,000 shares of common stock, \$.001 par value. As of December 28, 2023, we had approximately 75,453,370 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. Unless stated otherwise, the following discussion summarizes the term and provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws. This description is summarized from, and qualified in its entirety by reference to, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, which has been publicly filed with the OTC Markets Pink marketplace.

The following description is a summary of the material rights of shareholders. Shareholder rights are dictated via the Company's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. Each of the foregoing documents has been filed as an exhibit to this circular.

#### **Common Stock**

The holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted upon by our stockholders and there are no cumulative rights. Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any outstanding preferred stock, the holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to receive ratably any dividends that may be declared from time to time by our board of directors out of funds legally available for that purpose. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities, subject to prior distribution rights of preferred stock then outstanding. Our common stock has no preemptive or conversion rights or other subscription rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to our common stock. The outstanding shares of our common stock are fully paid and non-assessable, and any shares of our common stock to be issued upon an offering pursuant to this Offering Circular will be fully paid and nonassessable upon issuance.

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock. Moreover, we do not anticipate paying periodic cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future. Any future determination about the payment of dividends will be made at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon our earnings, if any, capital requirements, operating and financial conditions and on such other factors as our board of directors deems relevant.

#### **Transfer Agent**

The stock transfer agent for our securities is Transfer Online, Inc. in Portland, OR.

#### Market Price, Dividends, and Related Stockholder Matters

Our securities are not traded on a national exchange, but are quoted on OTC Markets Pink marketplace. There is only a limited market for our securities.

The last sale price of the Company's common stock on December 27, 2023 was \$0.0398 per share.

As of December 28, 2023, there were approximately 290 shareholders of record.

We do not have an equity incentive plan.

We have not declared any cash dividends on our common stock in the past two years and do not anticipate paying such dividends in the foreseeable future. We plan to retain any future earnings for use in our business. Any decisions as to future payments of dividends will depend on our earnings and financial position and such other facts, as the Board of Directors deems relevant.

#### DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION POSITION ON INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES LIABILITIES

Our Bylaws, subject to the provisions of Nevada Law, contain provisions which allow the corporation to indemnify any person against liabilities and other expenses incurred as the result of defending or administering any pending or anticipated legal issue in connection with service to us if it is determined that person acted in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed was in the best interest of the corporation. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to our directors, officers and controlling persons, we have been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable.

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a Regulation A Offering Statement on Form 1-A under the Securities Act of 1993, as amended, with respect to the shares of Common Stock offered hereby. This Offering Circular, which constitutes a part of the Offering Statement, does not contain all of the information set forth in the Offering Statement or the exhibits and schedules filed therewith. For further information about us and the Common Stock offered hereby, we refer you to the Offering Statement and the exhibits and schedules filed therewith. Statements contained in this Offering Circular regarding the contents of any contract or other document that is filed as an exhibit to the Offering Statement are not necessarily complete, and each such statement is qualified in all respects by reference to the full text of such contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the Offering Statement. You may read and copy this information at the SEC's Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet website that contains reports, proxy statements and other information about issuers, including us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of this site is www.sec.gov. In addition, you can find all of our public filings on otemarkets.com, and specifically at this link: https://www.otemarkets.com/stock/BMXI/disclosure.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2023 AND 2022

## BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS, INC. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2023 AND 2022

## **Brookmount Explorations, Inc.**

# **Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheet as at August 31, 2023**

	Au	August 2023		ember 2022
		\$'000		\$'000
Assets				
Cash and cash equivalents		64		182
Inventory		3,500		3,200
Total current assets		3,564		3,382
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization		6,150		3,400
Investment in Talawaan Project		500		500
Land Usage rights		10,500		9,850
Receivable due from non affiliate		17,708		13,390
Total non-current assets		34,902		27,140
Total assets		38,422		30,522
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity/(Deficit)				
Liabilities				
Accounts payable		448		259
Convertible notes		300		217
Warrants		_		_
Derivative liabilities		_		_
Income taxes payable		175		1,250
Total current liabilities		923		1,726
Unpaid capital commitments		244		244
Total non-current liabilities		244		244
Total liabilities	_	1,167		1,970
Equity	<del></del>			2,5 1 0
Common stock				
Authorized: \$0.001 par value, 2,000,000,000 shares authorized				
issued and outstanding: 60,703,370	\$	281,568	\$	259,929
Additional paid in capital		3,477		1,720
Adjustments to equity to reflect retroactive application of reverse acquisition of		,		,
accounting		(911)		(911)
Accumulated profits		34,407		27,483
Total stockholders' equity		37,255		28,552
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity		38,422		30,552

## **Brookmount Explorations, Inc.**

# **Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Operations For the nine month ended August 31, 2023**

	3 months ended August 31, 2023	9 months ended August 31, 2023	3 months ended August 31, 2022	9 months ended August 31, 2022
	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000
Revenue				
Sales	4,850	14,015	4,530	13,156
Cost of sales	(1,697)	(4,697)	(1,463)	(4,321)
Gross profit	3,153	9,318	3,067	8,835
Operating expenses				
Depreciation and amortization	52	202	115	299
Selling, general and administrative expenses	406	1,223	375	1,189
Total operating expenses	458	1,425	490	1,488
Interest expense	22	56	13	46
Amortization on discount of convertible notes.	_	_	5	6
Fair value adjustment of warrant liabilities			(2)	(2)
Total other expenses	22	56	16	50
Income/(loss) from continuing operations before				
income tax expenses	2,673	7,837	2,561	7,297
Provision for income tax	(85)	(913)	(125)	(1,025)
Net income/(loss) after income tax expense for the				
period	2,588	6,924	2,436	6,272
Other comprehensive income /(loss)				
Other comprehensive income/(loss)	_	_	_	_
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period	2,588	6,924	2,436	6,272

0.01/Share)

## Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity For the year ended August 31, 2023 and 2022

For the year ended August 31, 2023 and 2022							
	Commo	n Stock					
		Amount	Additional Paid in Capital	Other Comprehensive Income	Accumulated Profits	Adjustments to equity to reflect retroactive application of reverse acquisition accounting	Total Equity
	Shares	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000
Balance at November 30, 2021	17,795,181	237	737		19,985	(911)	20,048
Income after income tax expense for the period New Share issuance (800,000 shares @ USD 0.114/Share)	800,000	1	90	<u> </u>	1,927		1,927 91
New Share issuance (1,500,000 shares @	000,000	1	70				71
USD0.001/Share)	1,500,000	1		_		_	1
Total comprehensive	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Income for the period	2,300,000	2	90	_	1,927		2,019
Balance at February 28, 2022	20,095,181	239	827	_	21,912	(911)	22,067
Income after income tax expense for the period	_	_	_	_	1,909	_	1,909
New Share issuance (1,650,00,000 shares @ USD 0.001/Share)	1,650,000	2	90	_	_	_	2
New Share issuance (1,333,333 shares @ USD0.12/Share) Total comprehensive	1,333,333	1	159	_	_	_	160
Income for the period	2,983,333	3	159		1,909		2,071
Balance at May 31, 2022	23,078,514	242	986		23,821	(911)	24,138
					2.426		2.426
Income after income tax expense for the year New Share issuance (1,750,000 shares @ USD 0.001/Share)	1,750,000				2,436		2,436
New Share issuance (3,733,340 shares @ USD 0.12/Share)	3,733,340	4	444	_	_		448
New Share issuance (10,501,864 shares @ USD 0.029/Share)	10,501,864	10	290	_	_	_	300
Total comprehensive							
Income for the period	15,985,204	16	734		2,436		3,186
Balance at August 31, 2022	39,063,718	<u>258</u>	1,720		26,257	(911)	27,324
	Commo	n Stock					
		Amount	Additional Paid in Capital	Other Comprehensive Income	Accumulated Profits	Adjustments to equity to reflect retroactive application of reverse acquisition accounting	Total Equity
	Shares	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000
Balance at November 30, 2022	41,063,718	260	1,720	_	27,483	(911)	28,552
Income after income tax expense for the year	_	_	<u> </u>	_	2,129		2,129
New Share issuance (2,500,000 shares @ USD 0.01/Share)	2 500 000	3					3

3

2,500,000

New Share issuance (7,173,236 shares @ USD 0.075/Share)	7,173,236	7	531				538
New Share issuance (2,038,137 shares @ USD		,					
0.12/Share)	2,038,137	2	243	_	_	_	245
Total comprehensive				_	_	_	_
Income for the period	2,500,000	12	774		2,129		2,915
Balance at February 28, 2023	52,775,091	272	2,494		29,612	(911)	31,467
Income after income tax expense for the year	_	_		_	2,207	_	2,207
New Share issuance (7,928,279 shares @ USD							
0.10/Share)	7,928,279	8	785	_	_	_	793
Total comprehensive		_		_	_	_	_
Income for the period	7,928,279	8	785		2,207		3,000
Balance at May 31,2023	60,703,370	280	3,279		31,819	(911)	34,467
Income after income tax expense for the year				_	2,588	_	2,588
New Share issuance (2,000,000 shares @ USD							
0.10/Share)	2,000,000	2	198	_	_	_	200
Total comprehensive	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Income for the period		2	198		2,588		2,788
Balance at August 31,2023	60,703,370	282	3,477		34,407	(911)	37,255
		F-3					

## **Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For the nine month ended August 31, 2023**

	3 months ended Aug 31, 2023	9 months ended Aug 31, 2023	3 months ended Aug 31, 2022	9 months ended Aug 31, 2022
	\$'000	\$'000	\$000	\$000
Cash flows from operating activities:				
Net income/(Loss)	2,588	6,924	2,436	6,272
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities				
Depreciation and amortization	52	202	115	299
Share based payments	_	786	_	_
Fair value adjustment of warrant	_	_	(3)	(1)
Amortization of discount on convertible notes	_	_	5	5
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities				
(Increase)/Decrease in inventory	200	300	(800)	(125)
Increase/(Decrease) in account payable	35	189	13	(58)
(Increase)/Decrease in unpaid capital commitments	_	_	_	_
(Increase)/Decrease in non affiliate loans	1,912	(4,318)	825	640
Increase/(Decrease) in tax provision	23	(1,075)	(945)	(820)
Net cash used in operating activities	986	2,408	1,646	6,212
Cash flows from investing activities				
Payments for property, plant & equipment	(1,052)	(2,952)	(745)	(2,399)
Payments for Land Usage Rights		(650)	(1,000)	(4,200)
Net cash used in investing activities	(1,052)	(3,602)	(1,745)	(6,599)
Cash flows from financing activities				
Proceeds from Convertible Notes	8	283	65	65
Proceeds from share issuance	_	793	450	704
Net cash provided by financing activities	8	1,076	515	769
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	(58)	(118)	416	382
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period	122	182	35	69
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period	64	64	451	451
	F-4			

#### 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### 1.1. Nature of Operations

Following its merger with SL Holdings Ltd, the Company is now an operator of producing gold properties in the Republic of Indonesia. The Company currently operates 2 gold producing properties in volcanic hosted sediment within the tropical rain forest region of Sulawesi Province in north east Indonesia and is in the process of acquiring additional high grade properties in the area, which was originally surveyed and developed by Newmont Mining of the US. The Company is incorporated in Nevada and was organized for the purpose of acquiring, exploring and developing mineral properties. The Company is in the process of increasing the processing rates of ore on its properties and focusing on increasing yields and is looking to secure financing to acquire additional producing facilities in the Indonesia.

#### Basis of Presentation

These unaudited financial statements of the Company have been prepared by Management. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP").

#### 1.2. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company continually assesses any new accounting pronouncements to determine their applicability to the Company. Where it is determined that a new accounting pronouncement affects the Company's financial reporting, the Company undertakes a study to determine the consequence of the change to its financial statements and assures that there are proper controls in place to ascertain that the Company's financials properly reflect the change. The Company currently does not have any recent accounting pronouncements that they are studying and feel may be applicable.

#### 1.3. Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### 1.4. Reverse Acquisition Accounting

In accordance with "reverse acquisition" accounting treatment, our historical financial statements as of period ends, and for periods ended, prior to the Acquisition will be replaced with the historical financial statements of SL Group Holdings, Limited ("SL Group"), in all future filings with the SEC. Consequently retroactive adjustments have been made to the equity balances of SL Group to reflect the equity balances of the legal parent company Brookmount Explorations, Inc. as required under ASC 805 and the application of reverse acquisition accounting.

#### 1.5. Foreign Currency Translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States dollars. In accordance with the standard, "Foreign Currency Translation", foreign denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into their United States dollar equivalents using foreign exchange rates which prevailed at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated at average rates of exchange during the year. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in results of operations.

#### 1.6. Environmental Costs

Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations, and which do not contribute to current or future revenue generation, are expensed. Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessments and/or remedial efforts are probable, and the cost can be reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these accruals coincides with the earlier of completion of a feasibility study or the Company's commitments to plan of action based on the then known facts.

#### 1.7. Principles of Consolidation

The unaudited consolidated financial statements include the Company's accounts and those of the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

#### 1.8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash deposits and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

#### 1.9. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are comprised of assets utilized in the processing and refining of ore into phase 1 and 2 gold production. These assets include electrical and plumbing infrastructure and equipment, on site facilities and buildings and general equipment. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets.

#### 1.10. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company adopted Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" ("ASC 820"), for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. ASC 820 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America that requires the use of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements. ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Additionally, ASC 820 requires the use of valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

These inputs are prioritized below:

- Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
- Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data, which require the use of the reporting entity's own assumptions.

The Company analyzes all financial instruments with features of both liabilities and equity under the Financial Accounting Standard Board's ("FASB") accounting standard for such instruments. Under this standard, financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The carrying amounts reported in the condensed consolidated balance sheets for cash, and accounts payable, approximate their estimated fair values based on the short-term maturity of these instruments.

#### Convertible notes payable and Common stock warrant liability Level 3

Convertible Notes

Payable \$299,908

Warrant to purchase

common stock \$118

Our Level 3 financial liabilities consist of convertible notes payable (the "Notes") and warrants for the purchase of common stock, all of which were issued as detailed below:

- (i) On August 7, 2020 we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold (i)convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 to be drawn in tranches and (ii) Warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 50,000 shares of our common stock at an initial exercise price of \$1.00 per share.
- (ii) On October 7, 2020, a further \$50,000 in a second tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above.
- (iii) On December 2, 2020, a further \$50,000 in a third tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above.
- (iv) On March 23, 2021, a further \$50,000 in a fourth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above.
- (v) On June 25, 2021, a further \$175,000 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.
- (vi) On August 3, 2022, we entered into a 4% convertible redeemable note with one person, in the aggregate of \$97,000.
- (vii) On January 5, 2023, a further \$50,000 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.
- (viii) On February 3, 2023, a further \$50,000 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.
- (ix) On March 14, 2023, a further \$50,000 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.
- (x) On April 5, 2023, a further \$25,000 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.
- (xi) On April 19, 2023, a further \$25,000 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.
- (xii) On April 25, 2023, a further \$25,000 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.

- (xiii) On April 28, 2023, a further \$25,000 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.
- (xiv) On May 19, 2023, we entered into a 4% convertible redeemable note with one person, in the aggregate of \$25,000.
- (xv) On August 31, 2023, a further \$7,500 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.

The fair values of these liabilities as of their issuance date and the subsequent measurement date of November 30, 2021 were determined utilizing a Black-Scholes valuation model, which requires use of unobservable inputs. The inputs are determined by management, with the assistance of independent experts; they represent our best estimates, but involve certain inherent uncertainties. We used the market value of the underlying stock, a life equal to the contractual life of the financial instrument, incremental borrowing rates and bond yields that correspond to instruments of similar credit worthiness and the instrument's remaining life, an estimate of volatility based on the historical prices of our trading securities, and we made assumptions as to our abilities to test and commercialize our product(s), to obtain future financings when and if needed, and to comply with the terms and conditions of our Notes.

A significant change in the market price per share, expected volatility, or bond yield of equivalent securities, in isolation, would result in significantly higher or lower fair value measurements. In combination, changes in these inputs could result in a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement if the input changes were to be aligned, or could result in a minimally higher or lower fair value measurement if the input changes were of a compensating nature.

#### 1.1. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Accordingly, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in the tax rate is recognized in income or expense in the period that the change is effective. Tax benefits are recognized when it is probable that the deduction will be sustained. A valuation allowance is established when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will either expire before the Company is able to realize the benefit, or that future deductibility is uncertain.

The Company submits tax returns to local and provincial agencies in Indonesia but does not generate revenue in the US and as such, is not required to submit a US tax return. Uncertain tax positions taken on the Company's tax returns will be accounted for as liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits. The Company will recognize interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in general and administrative expenses in the statements of operations.

#### 1.2. Inventory

Inventory is valued at a rate based on the market equivalent of the prevailing gold price which is continually variable. Inventory production cost is determined using a matrix of unit costs such as electricity, labour, chemicals and capital equipment such as excavators and dump trucks.

#### 1.1. Production Property

The Company is primarily engaged in the development and production of gold ore bearing properties. Properties are invested or operated under long term production agreements from local partners. Acquisition costs are capitalized in accordance with U.S. GAAP when management has determined that future benefits consisting of a contribution to future cash inflows, have been identified and adequate financial resources are available to complete the required investment.

#### 1.2. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized from a sale when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is determinable, the product has been delivered, risk and the title has been transferee to the customer and collection of the sales price is reasonably assured.

#### 1.3. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is presented net of applicable income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of stockholders' equity and comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of revenues, expenses, gains, and losses that under GAAP are reported as separate components of stockholders' equity instead of net income (loss).

#### 2. Investment in Talawaan Project

The Company has invested in long term (20 year) operating agreements with exclusive land usage rights with a local entity in Talawaan City, district of Minahasa in Northern Sulawesi Province for excavation, production and processing on a 25 hectare site close to the airport of the regional capital Manado. The property has a complete processing plant onsite, including ore crushers, ball mills, floatation processing tanks and tailing ponds and ore is excavated from reefs of medium to high grade volcanic hosted ore present on the property. The facility at Talawaan also processes ore on behalf of 3<sup>rd</sup> party mining groups on a contract basis.

#### 3. Segment Information

The Company operates predominantly in one industry and one geographical segment, those being gold mining and Indonesia, respectively.

#### 4. Capital and Leasing Commitments

There was no capital or leasing expenditure at August 31, 2023.

#### 5. Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is involved in routine litigation that arises in the ordinary course of business. There are no pending significant legal proceedings to which the Company is a party for which management believes the ultimate outcome would have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position.

#### 6. Events After the Reporting Period

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of these financial statements any other item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operation of the company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company, in future financial years except for:

As of September 30, the Talawaan operating agreement was renegotiated and amended such that all the retained cash from unallocated earnings, being held by our operating partner on behalf of BMXI, are reinvested into (1) the expansion of the gold reserve area, (2) recapitalization and expansion of the joint venture mining assets and capital equipment and (3) review of workers safety protocols and standards, including additional training, and upgrading of safety equipment.

#### FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021

## BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS, INC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021

## **Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheet As at November 30, 2022**

	Nove	ember 2022	Nove	ember 2021
		\$'000		\$'000
Assets				
Cash and cash equivalents		182		69
Inventory		3,200		1,125
Derivative Assets		_		
Total current assets		3,382		1,194
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated				
epreciation and amortization		3,400		1,050
Investment in Talawaan Project		500		500
Land Usage rights		9,850		8,300
Receivable due from non affiliate		13,390		10,896
Total non-current assets		27,140	_	20,746
Total assets		30,522		21,940
				,
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity/(Deficit)				
Liabilities				
Accounts payable		259		308
Convertible notes		217		414
Warrants				1
Derivative liabilities		_		_
Income taxes payable		1,250		925
Total current liabilities		1,726		1,648
Unpaid capital commitments		244		244
Total non-current liabilities		244		244
Total liabilities		1,970		1,892
Equity				
Common stock				
Authorized: \$0.001 par value, 2,000,000,000 shares authorized				
Issued and outstanding: 41,063,718	\$	259,929	\$	236,661
Additional paid in capital	Ψ	1,720	Ψ	737
Adjustments to equity to reflect retroactive application of reverse acquisition of		1,720		131
accounting		(911)		(911
Accumulated profits		27,483		19,985
Total stockholders' equity		28,552		20,048
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity		30,552		21,940
Total habilities and stockholders equity		30,332		21,94

## Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Operations For the fiscal year ended November 30, 2022

	12 months ended Nov 30, 2022	12 months ended Nov 30, 2021
	\$'000	\$'000
Revenue		
Sales	16,356	14,070
Cost of sales	5,421	4,292
Gross profit	10,935	9,778
Operating expenses		
Depreciation and amortization	394	252
Selling, general and administrative expenses	1,731	1,758
Total operating expenses	2,125	2,010
Interest expense	59	48
Amortization of discount on convertible notes	5	_
Fair value adjustment of derivative financial instruments	_	(8)
Fair value adjustment of warrant liabilities	(2)	(22)
Total other expenses	62	18
Income/(loss) from continuing operations before income tax expenses	8,748	7,750
Provision for income tax	1,250	1,100
Net income/(loss) after income tax expense for the period	7,498	6,650
Other comprehensive income /(loss)		
Other comprehensive income/(loss)		
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period	7,498	6,650

Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity For the year ended November 30, 2021 and 2020

	Common	Amount	Additional Paid in Capital	Other Comprehensive Income	Accumulated Profits	Adjustments to quity to reflect retroactive application of reverse acquisition accounting	Total Equity
	Shares	\$'000	\$ '000	\$ '000	\$ '000	\$ '000	\$ '000
Balance at November 30, 2020	12,513,865	231	737		13,335	(911)	13,392
Income after income tax expense for the year	_		_	_	6,650	_	6,650
New Share issuance (192,500 shares @ USD							
0.001/Share)	192,500	_	_	_	_	_	_
New Share issuance (501,000 shares @ USD							
0.001/Share)	501,000	1			_		1
New Share issuance (87,816 shares @ USD							
0.001/Share)	87,816	_	_	_	_	_	_
New Share issuance (4,500,000 share @ USD							
0.001/Share)	4,500,000	5		_			5
Total comprehensive							
Income for the period	5,281,315	6			6,650		6,656
Balance at November 30, 2021	17,795,181	237	737		19,985	(911)	20,048

Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity For the year ended November 30, 2022 and 2021

	Common	Stock					
		Amount	Additional Paid in Capital	Other Comprehensive Income	Accumulated Profits	Adjustments to equity to reflect retroactive application of reverse acquisition accounting	Total Equity
	Shares	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$ '000	\$ '000
Balance at November 30, 2021	17,795,181	237	737	_	19,985	(911)	20,048
Income after income tax expense for the year	_	_	_	_	7,498	_	7,498
New Share issuance (800,000 shares @ USD							
0.114/Share)	800,000	1	90	_	_	_	91
New Share issuance (1,500,000 shares @ USD 0.001/Share)	1,500,000	1	_	_	_	_	1
New Share issuance (1,650,000 shares @ USD 0.001/Share)	1,650,000	2		_		_	2
New Share issuance (1,333,333 shares @ USD 012/Share)	1,333,333	1	159	_		_	160
New Share issuance (1,750,000 shares @ USD 0.001/Share)	1,750,000	2		_		_	2
New Share issuance (3,733,340 shares @ USD 0.12/Share)	3,733,340	4	444	_	_	_	448
New Share issuance (10,501,864 shares @ USD 0.029/Share)	10,501,864	10	290	_	_	_	300
New Share issuance (2,000,000 shares @ USD 0.001/Share)	2,000,000	2	_	_		_	2
Total comprehensive	· · ·		_	_	_	_	_
Income for the period	23,268,537	23	983		7,498		8,504
Balance at November 30, 2022	41,063,718	260	1,720	_	27,483	(911)	28,552

## **Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended November 30, 2022**

	12 months ended Nov 30, 2021 \$ '000
\$ '000	
7,498	6,550
394	252
_	(8)
(1)	(22)
(2,075)	(901)
(49)	306
_	_
(2,492)	(3,963)
325	250
3,600	2,564
(2,744)	(482)
	(2,500)
(4,294)	(2,982)
97	310
(294)	_
. ,	5
807	315
113	(103)
	172
182	69
	97 (294) 1,004 <b>807</b> 113 69

#### 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### 1.1 Nature of Operations

Following its merger with SL Holdings Ltd, the Company is now an operator of producing gold properties in the Republic of Indonesia. The Company currently operates 2 gold producing properties in volcanic hosted sediment within the tropical rain forest region of Sulawesi Province in north east Indonesia and is in the process of acquiring additional high grade properties in the area, which was originally surveyed and developed by Newmont Mining of the US. The Company is incorporated in Nevada and was organized for the purpose of acquiring, exploring and developing mineral properties. The Company is in the process of increasing the processing rates of ore on its properties and focusing on increasing yields and is looking to secure financing to acquire additional producing facilities in the Indonesia.

#### Basis of Presentation

These unaudited financial statements of the Company have been prepared by Management. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP").

#### Going concern basis

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes continuity of normal business activities and the realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

At November 30, 2022, the company had a current asset surplus of \$1,656,000 and net asset surplus of \$28,552,000 (November 30, 2021 current asset deficiency of \$406,000 and net asset surplus \$20,050,000). The Company reported an after tax profit of \$7,498,000 for the year ended November 30,2021 (November 30, 2021 after tax profit: \$6,590,000).

The company has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis that contemplates the continuity of normal business activity, realization of assets and settlement of liabilities at the amounts recorded in the financial statements in the ordinary course of business.

The company believes that there are reasonable grounds to support the fact that it will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable. In forming this opinion, the Group has considered the following factors:

- (i) The company has generated positive cash flow from operations in each of the past 2 years;
- (ii) The company has ability to raise additional funds through issuance of common stock; and
- (iii) The company has issued convertible notes to raise additional funds.

If the Company is unable to continue as a going concern it may be required to realize its assets and extinguish its liabilities other than in the ordinary course of business at amounts different from those stated in the financial statements.

The financial statements do not include adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or to the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company not continue as a going concern.

#### 1.2 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company continually assesses any new accounting pronouncements to determine their applicability to the Company. Where it is determined that a new accounting pronouncement affects the Company's financial reporting, the Company undertakes a study to determine the consequence of the change to its financial statements and assures that there are proper controls in place to ascertain that the Company's financials properly reflect the change. The Company currently does not have any recent accounting pronouncements that they are studying and feel may be applicable.

#### 1.3 Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### 1.4 Reverse Acquisition Accounting

In accordance with "reverse acquisition" accounting treatment, our historical financial statements as of period ends, and for periods ended, prior to the Acquisition will be replaced with the historical financial statements of SL Group Holdings, Limited ("SL Group"), in all future filings with the SEC. Consequently retroactive adjustments have been made to the equity balances of SL Group to reflect the equity balances of the legal parent company Brookmount Explorations, Inc. as required under ASC 805 and the application of reverse acquisition accounting.

#### 1.5 Foreign Currency Translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States dollars. In accordance with the standard, "Foreign Currency Translation", foreign denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into their United States dollar equivalents using foreign exchange rates which prevailed at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated at average rates of exchange during the year. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in results of operations.

#### 1.6 Environmental Costs

Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations, and which do not contribute to current or future revenue generation, are expensed. Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessments and/or remedial efforts are probable, and the cost can be reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these accruals coincides with the earlier of completion of a feasibility study or the Company's commitments to plan of action based on the then known facts.

#### 1.7 Principles of Consolidation

The unaudited consolidated financial statements include the Company's accounts and those of the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

#### 1.8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash deposits and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

#### 1.9 Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are comprised of assets utilized in the processing and refining of ore into phase 1 and 2 gold production. These assets include electrical and plumbing infrastructure and equipment, on site facilities and buildings and general equipment. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets.

#### 1.10Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company adopted Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" ("ASC 820"), for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. ASC 820 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America that requires the use of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Additionally, ASC 820 requires the use of valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

These inputs are prioritized below:

- Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
- Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data, which require the use of the reporting entity's own assumptions.

The Company analyzes all financial instruments with features of both liabilities and equity under the Financial Accounting Standard Board's ("FASB") accounting standard for such instruments. Under this standard, financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The carrying amounts reported in the condensed consolidated balance sheets for cash, and accounts payable, approximate their estimated fair values based on the short-term maturity of these instruments.

#### Convertible notes payable and Common stock warrant liability Level 3

Convertible Notes

Payable \$217,408

Warrant to purchase

common stock \$0

Our Level 3 financial liabilities consist of convertible notes payable (the "Notes") and warrants for the purchase of common stock, all of which were issued as detailed below:

- (i) On August 7, 2020 we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold.
- (i) convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 to be drawn in tranches and (ii) Warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 50,000 shares of our common stock at an initial exercise price of \$1.00 per share.
- (ii) On October 7, 2020, a further \$50,000 in a second tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above.

- (iii)On December 2, 2020, a further \$50,000 in a third tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above.
- (iv)On March 23, 2021, a further \$50,000 in a fourth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above.
- (v) On June 25, 2021, a further \$175,000 in a fifth tranche was drawn down from the Securities Purchase Agreement with one person, pursuant to which we sold convertible senior secured convertible promissory notes dated August 7, 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of \$568,182 as per (i) above amended on June 25, 2021.
- (vi)On August 3, 2022, we entered into a 4% convertible redeemable note with one person, in the aggregate of \$97,000.

The fair values of these liabilities as of their issuance date and the subsequent measurement date of November 30, 2022 were determined utilizing a Black-Scholes valuation model, which requires use of unobservable inputs. The inputs are determined by management, with the assistance of independent experts; they represent our best estimates, but involve certain inherent uncertainties. We used the market value of the underlying stock, a life equal to the contractual life of the financial instrument, incremental borrowing rates and bond yields that correspond to instruments of similar credit worthiness and the instrument's remaining life, an estimate of volatility based on the historical prices of our trading securities, and we made assumptions as to our abilities to test and commercialize our product(s), to obtain future financings when and if needed, and to comply with the terms and conditions of our Notes.

A significant change in the market price per share, expected volatility, or bond yield of equivalent securities, in isolation, would result in significantly higher or lower fair value measurements. In combination, changes in these inputs could result in a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement if the input changes were to be aligned, or could result in a minimally higher or lower fair value measurement if the input changes were of a compensating nature.

#### 1.11Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Accordingly, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in the tax rate is recognized in income or expense in the period that the change is effective. Tax benefits are recognized when it is probable that the deduction will be sustained. A valuation allowance is established when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will either expire before the Company is able to realize the benefit, or that future deductibility is uncertain.

The Company submits tax returns to local and provincial agencies in Indonesia but does not generate revenue in the US and as such, is not required to submit a US tax return. Uncertain tax positions taken on the Company's tax returns will be accounted for as liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits. The Company will recognize interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in general and administrative expenses in the statements of operations.

#### 1.12Inventory

Inventory is valued at a rate based on the market equivalent of the prevailing gold price which is continually variable. Inventory production cost is determined using a matrix of unit costs such as electricity, labour, chemicals and capital equipment such as excavators and dump trucks.

#### 1.13Production Property

The Company is primarily engaged in the development and production of gold ore bearing properties. Properties are invested or operated under long term production agreements from local partners. Acquisition costs are capitalized in accordance with U.S. GAAP when management has determined that future benefits consisting of a contribution to future cash inflows, have been identified and adequate financial resources are available to complete the required investment.

#### 1.14Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized from a sale when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is determinable, the product has been delivered, risk and the title has been transferee to the customer and collection of the sales price is reasonably assured.

#### 1.15Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is presented net of applicable income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of stockholders' equity and comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of revenues, expenses, gains, and losses that under GAAP are reported as separate components of stockholders' equity instead of net income (loss).

#### 2. Investment in Talawaan Project

The Company has invested in long term (20 year) operating agreements with exclusive land usage rights with a local entity in Talawaan City, district of Minahasa in Northern Sulawesi Province for excavation, production and processing on a 25 hectare site close to the airport of the regional capital Manado. The property has a complete processing plant onsite, including ore crushers, ball mills, floatation processing tanks and tailing ponds and ore is excavated from reefs of medium to high grade volcanic hosted ore present on the property. The facility at Talawaan also processes ore on behalf of 3<sup>rd</sup> party mining groups on a contract basis.

#### 3. Segment Information

The Company operates predominantly in one industry and one geographical segment, those being gold mining and Indonesia, respectively.

#### 4. Capital and Leasing Commitments

There was no capital or leasing expenditure at November 30, 2022 except for the below:

The company will make the following payments at the following times to Geoblock Exploration Limited with respect to the purchase of a 75% interest in a producing gold mine located in the state of Tocantins as describe in Note 6:

- \$500,000 initial deposit to be paid within 30 days of signing of the binding MoU, or such other date as agreed between the parties.
- \$4.5 million in cash to be paid on signing of a definitive Acquisition Agreement, which will take place within 60 days from signing of the binding MoU or such other date as agreed between the Parties.

#### 5. Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is involved in routine litigation that arises in the ordinary course of business. There are no pending significant legal proceedings to which the Company is a party for which management believes the ultimate outcome would have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position.

#### 6. Events After the Reporting Period

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of these financial statements any other item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operation of the company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company, in future financial years except for:

- (1) On January 17, 2023, the Board of Directors announced that it has received shareholder approval for the reduction of authorized shares from 2 billion to 200 million.
- (2) On February 9, 2023, the Company has signed a binding Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) to acquire a 75% interest in a producing gold mine located in the state of Tocantins, central Brazil. The Company will acquire a 75% interest in the Tocantins project from Geoblocks Exploration Ltd ("Geoblocks"), a company incorporated in the UK, which has entered into an irrevocable undertaking to acquire the 75% interest in Tocantins from its Brazilian owners.

# BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS, INC. 25,000,000 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OFFERING CIRCULAR

YOU SHOULD RELY ONLY ON THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT OR THAT WE HAVE REFERRED YOU TO. WE HAVE NOT AUTHORIZED ANYONE TO PROVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION THAT IS DIFFERENT. THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL COMMON STOCK AND IS NOT SOLICITING AN OFFER TO BUY COMMON STOCK IN ANY STATE WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS NOT PERMITTED.

The Date of this Offering Circular is January 19, 2023

### **EXHIBITS**

The following exhibits are filed with this offering circular:

### **Number Description of Exhibit**

- Articles of Incorporation and Amendments
- 2.2
- Bylaws
  Form of Subscription Agreement
  Opinion re legality 4.1
- 12

#### **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A, the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all the requirements for filing on Form 1-A and has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in Reno, Nevada on the 19th day of January, 2024.

BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS, INC.

By: /s/ Nils A. Ollquist
Nils Ollquist
Chief Executive Officer and Director

This offering statement has been signed by the following person on 19th day of January, 2024.

By: <u>/s/ Christopher Lim</u> Christopher Lim Chief Financial Officer FILED # C30940-99

DEC 09 1999

INTHE OFFICE OF

DEANKELLER

SECRETARY OF STATE

#### ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OP

#### BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS INC.

\* \* \* \* \*

The undersigned, acting as incorporator, pursuant to the provisions of corporations, the laws of the State of Nevada relating to private hereby adopts the following Articles of Incorporation:

ARTICLE ONE. [NAME] . The name of the corporation is:

#### BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS INC.

ARTICLE TWO. [RESIDENT AGENT]. The initial agent for service of process is Nevada Agency and Trust Company, 50 West Liberty Street, Suite 880, City of Reno, County of Washoe, State of Nevada 89501.

ARTICLE THREE. [PURPOSES] .The purposes for which the corporation is organized are to engage in any activity or business not in conflict with the laws of the State of Nevada or of the United States of America, and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, specifically:

- [OMNIBUS]. To have to exercise all the powers now or hereafter conferred by the laws of the State of Nevada upon corporations organized pursuant to he laws under which the corporation is organized and any and all acts amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto.
- II. [CARRYING ON BUSINESS OUTSIDE STATE]. To conduct and carry on its business or any branch thereof in any state or territory of the United States or in any foreign country in conformity with the laws of such state, territory, or foreign country, and to have and maintain in any state, territory, or foreign country a business office, plant, store or other facility.
- III. [PURPOSES TO BE CONSTRUED AS POWERS]. The purposes specified herein shall be construed both as purposes and powers and shall be in no wise limited or restricted by reference to, or inference from, the terms

of any other clause in this or any other article, but the purposes and powers specified in each of the clauses herein shall be regarded as independent purposes and powers, and the enumeration of specific purposes and powers shall not be construed to limit or restrict in any manner the meaning of general terms or of the general powers of the corporation; nor shall the expression of one thing be deemed to exclude another, although it be of like nature not expressed.

ARTICLE FOUR. (CAPITAL STOCK]. The corporation shall have authority to issue an aggregate of TWO HUNDRED MILLION(200,000,000) Common Capital Shares, ONE MILL (\$0.001) PAR VALUE per share, for a total capitalization of TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND (200,000.00) DOLLARS.

The holders of shares of capital stock of the corporation shall not be entitled to pre-emptive or preferential rights to subscribe to any unissued stock or any other securities which the corporation may now or hereafter be authorized to issue.

The corporation's capital stock may be issued and sold from time to time for such consideration as may be fixed by the Board of Directors, provided that the consideration so fixed is not less than par value.

The stockholders shall not possess cumulative voting rights at all shareholders meetings called for the purpose of electing a Board of Directors.

<u>ARTICLE FIVE.</u> [DIRECTORS]. The affairs of the corporation shall be governed by a Board of Directors of no more than seven  $\{7\}$  nor less than one  $\{1\}$  person. The name and address of the first Board of Directors is:

<u>NAME</u> <u>ADDRESS</u>

John Leslie Vaughn 25 A Claremont Avenue Point-Claire, Quebec Canada H9S 5C6

ARTICLE SIX. [ASSESSMENT OF STOCK]. The capital stock of the corporation, after the amount of the subscription price or par value has been paid in, shall not be subject to pay debts of the corporation, and no paid up stock and no stock issued as fully paid up shall ever be assessable or assessed.

ARTICLE SEVEN. [INCORPORATOR]. The name and address of the incorporator of the corporation is as follows:

NAME ADDRESS

Amanda Cardinalli 50 West Liberty Street, Suite

880

Reno, Nevada 89501

ARTICLE EIGHT. [PERIOD OF EXISTENCE]. The period of existence of the corporation shall be perpetual.

ARTICLE NINE. {BY-LAWS]. The initial By-laws of the corporation shall be adopted by its Board of Directors. The power to alter, amend, or repeal the By-laws, or to adopt new By-laws, shall be vested *in* the Board of Directors, except as otherwise may be specifically provided in the By-laws.

ARTICLE TEN. [STOCKHOLDERS' MEETINGS]. Meetings of stockholders shall be held at such place within or without the State of Nevada as may be provided by the By-laws of the corporation. Special meetings of the stockholders may be called by the President or any other executive officer of the corporation, the Board of Directors, or any member thereof, or by the record holder or holders of at least ten percent (10%-) of ail shares entitled to vote at the meeting. Any action otherwise required to be taken at a meeting of the stockholders, except election of directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by stockholders having at least a majority of the voting power.

ARTICLE ELEVEN. [CONTRACTS OF CORPORATION]. No contract or other transaction between the corporation and any other corporation, whether or not a majority of the shares of the capital stock of such other corporation is owned by this corporation, and no act of this corporation shall in any way be affected or invalidated by the fact that any of the directors of this corporation are pecuniarily or otherwise interested in, or are directors or officers of such other corporation. Any director of this corporation, individually, or any firm of which such director may be a member, may be a party to, or may be pecuniarily or otherwise interested in any contract or transaction of the corporation; provided, however, that the fact that he or such firm is so interested shall be disclosed or shall have been known to the Board of Directors of this corporation, or a majority thereof; and any director of this corporation who is also a director or officer of such other corporation, or who is so interested, may be counted in determining the existence of a quorum at any meeting of the Board of Directors of this corporation that shall authorize such contract or transaction, and may vote thereat to authorize such contract or transaction, with like force and effect as if he were not such director or officer of such other corporation or not so interested.

ARTICLE TWELVE. [LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS]. No director or officer shall have any personal liability to the corporation or its stockholders for damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director or officer, except that this Article Twelve shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a director or officer for (I) acts or omissions which involve intentional misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of law, or (ii) the payment of dividends in violation of the Nevada Revised Statutes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned incorporator has hereunto affixed her signature at Reno, Nevada this 8th day of December, 1999.

/s/ Amanda Cardinalli AMANDA CARDINALLI

#### CONSENT TO SERVE AS RESIDENT AGENT

The Nevada Agency and Trust Company, located at 50 West Liberty Street, Suite 880, Reno, Nevada 89501, hereby consents to serve as Resident Agent in the State of Nevada for the following Corporation:

#### BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS INC.

We understand that as agent for the Corporation, it will be our responsibility to receive service of process in the name of the Corporation; to forward all mail to the Corporation; and to immediately notify the office of the Secretary of State in the event of our resignation, or of any changes in the registered office of the Corporation for which we are an agent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned authorized representative of The Nevada Agency and Trust Company has hereunto affixed her signature at Reno, Nevada this 8th day of December, 1999.

/s/ Amanda Cardinalli AMANDA CARDINALLI

FILED # C30940-99

DEC 09 1999

IN THE OFFICE OF

DEAN KELLER SECRETARY OF STATE

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE Secretary of State 202 North Carson Street Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201 (775) 684-5708 Website: www.nvsos.gov

\*090204\*

Business Number C30940-1999

Filing Number **20180086908-62** 

Filed On **02/21/2018** 

## **Certificate of Amendment**

(Pursuant to NRS 78.385 AND 78.390)

**USE BLACK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT** 

ABOVE SPACE IS FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

# Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation For Nevada Profit Corporations

(Pursuant to NRS 78.385 and 78.390 - After Issuance of Stock)

1. Name of corporation:

Brookmount Explorations Inc.

2. The articles have been amended as follows: (provide article numbers, if available)

The first paragraph of Article Four of the Articles of Incorporation of Brookmount Explorations Inc. have been amended and restated as follows:

The corporation shall have authority to issue an aggregate of TWO MILLION" (2,000,000,000) Common Capital Shares, ONE MILL (\$0.001) PAR VALUE per share, for a total capitalization of TWO MILLION (2,000,000) DOLLARS.

- 3. The vote by which the stockholders holding shares in the corporation entitling them to exercise at least a majority of the voting power, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may be required in the case of a vote by classes or series, or as may be required by the provisions of the articles of incorporation\* have voted in favor of the amendment is: 58.5%
- 4. Effective date and time of filing: (optional) Date:

(must not be later than 90 days after the certificate is filed)

5. Signature: (required)

/s/ Officer

Signature of Officer

If any proposed amendment would alter or change any preference or any relative or other right given to any class or series of outstanding shares, then !he amendment must be approved by the vote. in addition to the affirmative vote otherwise required, of the holders of shares representing a majority of the voting power of each class or series affected by the amendment regardless to limitations or restrictions on the voling power thereof.

IMPORTANT: Failure to include any of the above information and submit with the proper fees may cause this filing to be rejected.

This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees.

Nevada Secretary of State Amend Profit-After Revised: 1-5-15 **BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE** Secretary of State 202 North Carson Street Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201 (775) 684-5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov

**Business Number** C30940-1999 Filing Number 20232900702 Filed On 1/24/2023

Profit Corporation:
Certificate of Amendment (PURSUANT TO NRS 78.380 & 78.385/78.390) Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and Restated Articles (PURSUANT TO NRS 78.403) Officer's Statement (PURSUANT TO NRS 80.030)

1. Entity information:	Name of entity:		
	Brookmount Explorations, Inc.		
	Entity or Nevada Business Identification Number (NVID): C30940-1999		
2. Restated or Amended and Restated Articles: (Select one) (If amending and restating only, complete section 1,2,3,5 and 6	□ Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and Restated Articles □ Restated Articles - No amendments, articles are restated only and are signed by an officer of the corporation who has been authorized to execute the certificate by resolution of the board of directors adopted on: □ The certificate correctly sets forth the text of the articles or certificate as amended to the date of the certificate. □ Amended and Restated Articles		
1,2,0,0 and 0	*Restated or Amended and Restated Articles must be included with this filing type.		
3. Type of Amendment Being Completed: (Select only one box)	□ Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (Pursuant to NRS 78.380 - Before Issuance of Stock)  The undersigned declare that they constitute at least two-thirds of the following:  (Check only one box) □ incorporators □ board of directors		
(If amending, complete section 1,3,5 and 6)	The undersigned affirmatively declare that to the date of this certificate, no stock of the corporation has been issued		
	☑ Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (Pursuant to NRS 78.385 and 78.390 - After Issuance of Stock)  The vote by which the stockholders holding shares in the corporation entitling them to exercise at least a majority of the voting power, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may be required in the case of a vote by classes or series, or as may be required by the provisions of the articles of incorporation* have voted in favor of the amendment is: 50.1%		
	□ Officer's Statement (foreign qualified entities only) - Name in home state, if using a modified name in Nevada:		
	Jurisdiction of formation:		
	Changes to takes the following effect:  ☐ The entity name has been amended. ☐ Dissolution ☐ The purpose of the entity has been amended. ☐ Merger ☐ The authorized shares have been amended. ☐ Conversion ☐ Other: (specify changes)		
	* Officer's Statement must be submitted with either a certified copy of or a certificate evidencing the filing of any document, amendatory or otherwise, relating to the original articles in the place of the corporations creation.		

This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE **Secretary of State** 202 North Carson Street Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201 (775) 684-5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov

Business Number C30940-1999 Filing Number 20232900702 Filed On 1/24/2023

## **Profit Corporation:**

Certificate of Amendment (PURSUANT TO NRS 78.380 & 78.385/78.390) Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and Restated Articles (PURSUANT TO NRS 78.403) Officer's Statement (PURSUANT TO NRS 80.030)

Date: Time:				
(must not be later than 90 days after the certificate is filed)				
Changes to takes the following effect:				
☐ The entity name has been amended.				
☐ The registered agent has been changed. (attach Certificate of Acceptance from new registered agent)				
☐ The purpose of the entity has been amended.				
☑ The authorized shares have been amended.				
<ul><li>□ The directors, managers or general partners have been amended.</li><li>□ IRS tax language has been added.</li></ul>				
☐ Articles have been added.				
☐ Articles have been deleted.				
□ Other.				
The articles have been amended as follows: (provide article numbers, if available)				
(attach additional page(s) if necessary)				
X /s/ Nils A Ollquist				
Signature of Officer or Authorized Signer Title: Director & President				
*If any proposed amendment would alter or change any preference or any relative or other right given to any class or series of outstanding shares, then the amendment must be approved by the vote, in addition to the affirmative vote otherwise required, of the holders of shares representing a majority of the voting power of each class or series affected by the amendment regardless to limitations or restrictions on the voting power thereof.				
Please include any required or optional information in space below:				
(attached additional pages if necessary)				
The Articles of Incorporation have been amended to reduce the authorized shares of common stock, par				
value \$0.001 per share, to two hundred million (200,000,000) shares.				

This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees

Page 2 of 2

## AMENDED AND RESTATED BY-LAWS OF BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS, INC.

(A NEVADA CORPORATION)

#### ARTICLE I

Section 1. Registered Office. The registered office of the corporation in the State of Nevada shall be at such place as the board shall resolve.

Section 2. Other Offices. The corporation shall also have and maintain an office or principal place of business at such place as may be fixed by the Board of Directors, and may also have offices at such other places, both within and without the State of Nevada as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or the business of the corporation may require.

#### ARTICLE II

#### CORPORATE SEAL

**Section 3. Corporate Seal.** The corporate seal shall consist of a die bearing the name of the corporation and the inscription, "Corporate Seal-Nevada." Said seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or reproduced or otherwise.

#### ARTICLE III

#### STOCKHOLDERS' MEETINGS

**Section 4. Place of Meetings.** Meetings of the stockholders of the corporation shall be held at such place, either within or without the State of Nevada, as may be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors, or, if not so designated, then at the office of the corporation required to be maintained pursuant to Section 2 hereof.

#### Section 5. Annual Meeting.

- (a) The annual meeting of the stockholders of the corporation, for the purpose of election of directors and for such other business as may lawfully come before it, shall be held on such date and at such time as may be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors.
- (b) At an annual meeting of the stockholders, only such business shall be conducted as shall have been properly brought before the meeting. To be properly brought before an annual meeting, business must be: (A) specified in the notice of meeting (or any supplement thereto) given by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, (B) otherwise properly brought before the meeting by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, or (C) otherwise properly brought before the meeting by a stockholder. For business to be properly brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder, the stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the corporation. To be timely, a stockholder's notice must be delivered to or mailed and received at the principal executive offices of the corporation not later than the close of business on the sixtieth (60th) day nor earlier than the close of business on the ninetieth (90th) day prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting; provided, however, that in the event that no annual meeting was held in the previous year or the date of the annual meeting has been changed by more than thirty (30) days from the date contemplated at the time of the previous year's proxy statement, notice by the stockholder to be timely must be so received not earlier than the close of business on the ninetieth (90th) day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the sixtieth (60th) day prior to such annual meeting or, in the event public announcement of the date of such annual meeting is first made by the corporation fewer than seventy (70) days prior to the date of such annual meeting, the close of business on

the tenth (10th) day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made by the corporation. A stockholder's notice to the Secretary shall set forth as to each matter the stockholder proposes to bring before the annual meeting: (i) a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the annual meeting and the reasons for conducting such business at the annual meeting, (ii) the name and address, as they appear on the corporation's books, of the stockholder proposing such business, (iii) the class and number of shares of the corporation which are beneficially owned by the stockholder, (iv) any material interest of the stockholder in such business and (v) any other information that is required to be provided by the stockholder pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "1934 Act"), in his capacity as a proponent to a stockholder proposal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in order to include information with respect to a stockholder proposal in the proxy statement and form of proxy for a stockholder's meeting, stockholders must provide notice as required by the regulations promulgated under the 1934 Act. Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to the contrary, no business shall be conducted at any annual meeting except in accordance with the procedures set forth in this paragraph (b). The chairman of the annual meeting shall, if the facts warrant, determine and declare at the meeting that business was not properly brought before the meeting and in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph (b), and, if he should so determine, he shall so declare at the meeting that any such business not properly brought before the meeting shall not be transacted.

- Only persons who are confirmed in accordance with the procedures set forth in this paragraph (c) shall be eligible for election as directors. Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors of the corporation may be made at a meeting of stockholders by or at the direction of the Board of Directors or by any stockholder of the corporation entitled to vote in the election of directors at the meeting who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this paragraph (c). Such nominations, other than those made by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, shall be made pursuant to timely notice in writing to the Secretary of the corporation in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (b) of this Section 5. Such stockholder's notice shall set forth (i) as to each person, if any, whom the stockholder proposes to nominate for election or re-election as a director: (A) the name, age, business address and residence address of such person, (B) the principal occupation or employment of such person, (c) the class and number of shares of the corporation which are beneficially owned by such person, (D) a description of all arrangements or understandings between the stockholder and each nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to which the nominations are to be made by the stockholder, and (E) any other information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors, or is otherwise required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the 1934 Act (including without limitation such person's written consent to being named in the proxy statement, if any, as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected); and (ii) as to such stockholder giving notice, the information required to be provided pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section 5. At the request of the Board of Directors, any person nominated by a stockholder for election as a director shall furnish to the Secretary of the corporation that information required to be set forth in the stockholder's notice of nomination which pertains to the nominee. No person shall be eligible for election as a director of the corporation unless nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this paragraph (c). The chairman of the meeting shall, if the facts warrant, determine and declare at the meeting that a nomination was not made in accordance with the procedures prescribed by these Bylaws, and if he should so determine, he shall so declare at the meeting, and the defective nomination shall be disregarded.
- (d) For purposes of this Section 5, "public announcement" shall mean disclosure in a press release reported by the Dow Jones News Service, Associated Press or comparable national news service or in a document publicly filed by the corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act.

#### Section 6. Special Meetings.

(a) Special meetings of the stockholders of the corporation may be called, for any purpose or purposes, by (i) the Chairman of the Board of Directors, (ii) the Chief Executive Officer, or (iii) the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the total number of authorized directors (whether or not there exist any vacancies in previously authorized directorships at the time any such resolution is presented to the Board of Directors for adoption), and shall be held at such place, on such date, and at such time, as the Board of Directors shall determine.

(b) If a special meeting is called by any person or persons other than the Board of Directors, the request shall be in writing, specifying the general nature of the business proposed to be transacted, and shall be delivered personally or sent by registered mail or by tele-graphic or other facsimile transmission to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, or the Secretary of the corporation. No business may be transacted at such special meeting otherwise than specified in such notice. The Board of Directors shall determine the time and place of such special meeting, which shall be held not less than thirty-five (35) nor more than one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of the receipt of the request. Upon determination of the time and place of the meeting, the officer receiving the request shall cause notice to be given to the stockholders entitled to vote, in accordance with the provisions of Section 7 of these Bylaws. If the notice is not given within sixty (60) days after the receipt of the request, the person or persons requesting the meeting may set the time and place of the meeting and give the notice. Nothing contained in this paragraph (b) shall be construed as limiting, fixing, or affecting the time when a meeting of stockholders called by action of the Board of Directors may be held.

Section 7. Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided by law or the Articles of Incorporation, written notice of each meeting of stockholders shall be given not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting, such notice to specify the place, date and hour and purpose or purposes of the meeting. Notice of the time, place and purpose of any meeting of stockholders may be waived in writing, signed by the person entitled to notice thereof, either before or after such meeting, and will be waived by any stockholder by his attendance thereat in person or by proxy, except when the stockholder attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Any stockholder so waiving notice of such meeting shall be bound by the proceedings of any such meeting in all respects as if due notice thereof had been given.

Section 8. Quorum. At all meetings of stockholders, except where otherwise provided by statute or by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, the presence, in person or by proxy duly authorized, of the holder or holders of not less than fifty percent (50%) of the outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. In the absence of a quorum, any meeting of stockholders may be adjourned, from time to time, either by the chairman of the meeting or by vote of the holders of a majority of the shares represented thereat, but no other business shall be transacted at such meeting. The stockholders present at a duly called or convened meeting, at which a quorum is present, may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough stockholders to leave less than a quorum. Except as otherwise provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, all action taken by the holders of a majority of the votes cast, excluding abstentions, at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be valid and binding upon the corporation; provided, however, that directors shall be elected by a plurality of the votes of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on the election of directors. Where a separate vote by a class or classes or series is required, except where otherwise provided by the statute or by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, a majority of the outstanding shares of such class or classes or series, present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum entitled to take action with respect to that vote on that matter and, except where otherwise provided by the statute or by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the affirmative vote of the majority (plurality, in the case of the election of directors) of the votes cast, including abstentions, by the holders of shares of such class or classes or series shall be the act of such class or cl

Section 9. Adjournment and Notice of Adjourned Meetings. Any meeting of stockholders, whether annual or special, may be adjourned from time to time either by the chairman of the meeting or by the vote of a majority of the shares casting votes, excluding abstentions. When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting, the corporation may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting.

Section 10. Voting Rights. For the purpose of determining those stockholders entitled to vote at any meeting of the stockholders, except as otherwise provided by law, only persons in whose names shares stand on the stock records of the corporation on the record date, as provided in Section 12 of these Bylaws, shall be entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders. Every person entitled to vote shall have the right to do so either in person or by an agent or agents authorized by a proxy granted in accordance with Nevada law. An agent so appointed need not be a stockholder. No proxy shall be voted after three (3) years from its date of creation unless the proxy provides for a longer period.

Section 11. Joint Owners of Stock. If shares or other securities having voting power stand of record in the names of two (2) or more persons, whether fiduciaries, members of a partnership, joint tenants, tenants in common, tenants by the entirety, or otherwise, or if two (2) or more persons have the same fiduciary relationship respecting the same shares, unless the Secretary is given written notice to the contrary and is furnished with a copy of the instrument or order appointing them or creating the relationship wherein it is so provided, their acts with respect to voting shall have the following effect: (a) if only one (1) votes, his act binds all; (b) if more than one (1) votes, the act of the majority so voting binds all; (c) if more than one (1) votes, but the vote is evenly split on any particular matter, each faction may vote the securities in question proportionally. If the instrument filed with the Secretary shows that any such tenancy is held in unequal interests, a majority or even-split for the purpose of subsection (c) shall be a majority or even-split in interest.

Section 12. List of Stockholders. The Secretary shall prepare and make, at least ten (10) days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at said meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any stockholder, for any purpose germane to the meeting, during ordinary business hours, for a period of at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting, either at a place within the city where the meeting is to be held, which place shall be specified in the notice of the meeting, or, if not specified, at the place where the meeting is to be held. The list shall be produced and kept at the time and place of meeting during the whole time thereof and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present.

Section 13. Action Without Meeting. No action shall be taken by the stockholders except at an annual or special meeting of stockholders called in accordance with these Bylaws, or by the written consent of the stockholders setting forth the action so taken and signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote upon were present and voted.

#### Section 14. Organization.

- (a) At every meeting of stockholders, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or, if a Chairman has not been appointed or is absent, the President, or, if the President is absent, a chairman of the meeting chosen by a majority in interest of the stockholders entitled to vote, present in person or by proxy, shall act as chairman. The Secretary, or, in his absence, an Assistant Secretary directed to do so by the President, shall act as secretary of the meeting.
- (b) The Board of Directors of the corporation shall be entitled to make such rules or regulations for the conduct of meetings of stockholders as it shall deem necessary, appropriate or convenient. Subject to such rules and regulations of the Board of Directors, if any, the chairman of the meeting shall have the right and authority to prescribe such rules, regulations and procedures and to do all such acts as, in the judgment of such chairman, are necessary, appropriate or convenient for the proper conduct of the meeting, including, without limitation, establishing an agenda or order of business for the meeting, rules and procedures for maintaining order at the meeting and the safety of those present, limitations on participation in such meeting to stockholders of record of the corporation and their duly authorized and constituted proxies and such other persons as the chairman shall permit, restrictions on entry to the meeting after the time fixed for the commencement thereof, limitations on the time allotted to questions or comments by participants and regulation of the opening and closing of the polls for balloting on matters which are to be voted on by ballot. Unless and to the extent determined by the Board of Directors or the chairman of the meeting, meetings of stockholders shall not be required to be held in accordance with rules of parliamentary procedure.

### ARTICLE IV

### **DIRECTORS**

Section 15. Number and Qualification. The authorized number of directors of the corporation shall be not less than one (1) nor more than thirteen (13) as fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors; provided that no decrease in the number of directors shall shorten the term of any incumbent directors. Directors need not be stockholders unless so required by the Articles of Incorporation. If for any cause, the directors shall not have been elected at an annual meeting, they may be elected as soon thereafter as convenient at a special meeting of the stockholders called for that purpose in the manner provided in these Bylaws.

- **Section 16. Powers.** The powers of the corporation shall be exercised, its business conducted and its property controlled by the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise provided by statute or by the Articles of Incorporation.
- Section 17. Election and Term of Office of Directors. Members of the Board of Directors shall hold office for the terms specified in the Articles of Incorporation, as it may be amended from time to time, and until their successors have been elected as provided in the Articles of Incorporation.
- Section 18. Vacancies. Unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, any vacancies on the Board of Directors resulting from death, resignation, disqualification, removal or other causes and any newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors, shall unless the Board of Directors determines by resolution that any such vacancies or newly created directorships shall be filled by stockholder vote, be filled only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, even though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors. Any director elected in accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold office for the remainder of the full term of the director for which the vacancy was created or occurred and until such director's successor shall have been elected and qualified. A vacancy in the Board of Directors shall be deemed to exist under this Bylaw in the case of the death, removal or resignation of any director.
- Section 19. Resignation. Any director may resign at any time by delivering his written resignation to the Secretary, such resignation to specify whether it will be effective at a particular time, upon receipt by the Secretary or at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. If no such specification is made, it shall be deemed effective at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. When one or more directors shall resign from the Board of Directors, effective at a future date, a majority of the directors then in office, including those who have so resigned, shall have power to fill such vacancy or vacancies, the vote thereon to take effect when such resignation or resignations shall become effective, and each director so chosen shall hold office for the unexpired portion of the term of the director whose place shall be vacated and until his successor shall have been duly elected and qualified.
- **Section 20. Removal.** Subject to the Articles of Incorporation, any director may be removed by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Corporation then entitled to vote, with or without cause.

#### Section 21. Meetings.

- (a) Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the annual meeting of stockholders and at the place where such meeting is held. No notice of an annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be necessary and such meeting shall be held for the purpose of electing officers and transacting such other business as may lawfully come before it.
- (b) Regular Meetings. Except as hereinafter otherwise provided, regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held in the office of the corporation required to be maintained pursuant to Section 2 hereof. Unless otherwise restricted by the Articles of Incorporation, regular meetings of the Board of Directors may also be held at any place within or without the state of Nevada which has been designated by resolution of the Board of Directors or the written consent of all directors.
- (c) Special Meetings. Unless otherwise restricted by the Articles of Incorporation, special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any time and place within or without the State of Nevada whenever called by the Chairman of the Board, the President or any two of the directors.
- (d) Telephone Meetings. Any member of the Board of Directors, or of any committee thereof, may participate in a meeting by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in a meeting by such means shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.
- (e) Notice of Meetings. Notice of the time and place of all special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be orally or in writing, by telephone, facsimile, email or sms text message, during normal business hours, at least twenty-four (24) hours before the date and time of the meeting, or sent in writing to each director by first class mail, charges prepaid, at least three (3) days before the date of the meeting. Notice of any meeting may be waived in writing at any time before or after the meeting and will be waived by any director by attendance thereat, except when the director attends the meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

(f) Waiver of Notice. The transaction of all business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, or any committee thereof, however called or noticed, or wherever held, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum be present and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the directors not present shall sign a written waiver of notice. All such waivers shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

#### Section 22. Quorum and Voting.

- (a) Unless the Articles of Incorporation requires a greater number and except with respect to indemnification questions arising under Section 43 hereof, for which a quorum shall be one-third of the exact number of directors fixed from time to time in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, a quorum of the Board of Directors shall consist of a majority of the exact number of directors fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation provided, however, at any meeting whether a quorum be present or otherwise, a majority of the directors present may adjourn from time to time until the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors, without notice other than by announcement at the meeting.
- (b) At each meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present, all questions and business shall be determined by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present, unless a different vote be required by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.
- Section 23. Action Without Meeting. Unless otherwise restricted by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board of Directors or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and such writing or writings are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board of Directors or committee.
- Section 24. Fees and Compensation. Directors shall be entitled to such compensation for their services as may be approved by the Board of Directors, including, if so approved, by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and expenses of attendance, if any, for attendance at each regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors and at any meeting of a committee of the Board of Directors. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any director from serving the corporation in any other capacity as an officer, agent, employee, or otherwise and receiving compensation therefor.

#### Section 25. Committees.

(a) Executive Committee. The Board of Directors may by resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board of Directors appoint an Executive Committee to consist of one (1) or more members of the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee, to the extent permitted by law and provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, including without limitation the power or authority to declare a dividend, to authorize the issuance of stock and to adopt a certificate of ownership and merger, and may authorize the seal of the corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it; but no such committee shall have the power or authority in reference to amending the Articles of Incorporation (except that a committee may, to the extent authorized in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of shares of stock adopted by the Board of Directors fix the designations and any of the preferences or rights of such shares relating to dividends, redemption, dissolution, any distribution of assets of the corporation or the conversion into, or the exchange of such shares for, shares of any other class or classes or any other series of the same or any other class or classes of stock of the corporation or fix the number of shares of any series of stock or authorize the increase or decrease of the shares of any series), adopting an agreement of merger or consolidation, recommending to the stockholders the sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of the corporation's property and assets, recommending to the stockholders a dissolution of the corporation or a revocation of a dissolution, or amending the bylaws of the corporation.

- (b) Other Committees. The Board of Directors may, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board of Directors, from time to time appoint such other committees as may be permitted by law. Such other committees appointed by the Board of Directors shall consist of one (1) or more members of the Board of Directors and shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the resolution or resolutions creating such committees, but in no event shall such committee have the powers denied to the Executive Committee in these Bylaws.
- (c) Term. Each member of a committee of the Board of Directors shall serve a term on the committee coexistent with such member's term on the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors, subject to the provisions of subsections (a) or (b) of this Bylaw may at any time increase or decrease the number of members of a committee or terminate the existence of a committee. The membership of a committee member shall terminate on the date of his death or voluntary resignation from the committee or from the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may at any time for any reason remove any individual committee member and the Board of Directors may fill any committee vacancy created by death, resignation, removal or increase in the number of members of the committee. The Board of Directors may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee, and, in addition, in the absence or disqualification of any member of a committee, the member or members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not he or they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member.
- (d) Meetings. Unless the Board of Directors shall otherwise provide, regular meetings of the Executive Committee or any other committee appointed pursuant to this Section 25 shall be held at such times and places as are determined by the Board of Directors, or by any such committee, and when notice thereof has been given to each member of such committee, no further notice of such regular meetings need be given thereafter. Special meetings of any such committee may be held at any place which has been determined from time to time by such committee, and may be called by any director who is a member of such committee, upon written notice to the members of such committee of the time and place of such special meeting given in the manner provided for the giving of written notice to members of the Board of Directors of the time and place of special meetings of the Board of Directors. Notice of any special meeting of any committee may be waived in writing at any time before or after the meeting and will be waived by any director by attendance thereat, except when the director attends such special meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. A majority of the authorized number of members of any such committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of those present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of such committee.

Section 26. Organization. At every meeting of the directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or, if a Chairman has not been appointed or is absent, the President, or if the President is absent, the most senior Vice President, or, in the absence of any such officer, a chairman of the meeting chosen by a majority of the directors present, shall preside over the meeting. The Secretary, or in his absence, an Assistant Secretary directed to do so by the President, shall act as secretary of the meeting.

#### ARTICLE V

#### **OFFICERS**

Section 27. Officers Designated. The officers of the corporation shall include, if and when designated by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the President, one or more Vice Presidents, the Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer, the Controller, all of whom shall be elected at the annual organizational meeting of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may also appoint one or more Assistant Secretaries, Assistant Treasurers, Assistant Controllers and such other officers and agents with such powers and duties as it shall deem necessary. The Board of Directors may assign such additional titles to one or more of the officers as it shall deem appropriate. Any one person may hold any number of offices of the corporation at any one time unless specifically prohibited therefrom by law. The salaries and other compensation of the officers of the corporation shall be fixed by or in the manner designated by the Board of Directors.

#### Section 28. Tenure and Duties of Officers.

- (a) General. All officers shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and until their successors shall have been duly elected and qualified, unless sooner removed. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed at any time by the Board of Directors. If the office of any officer becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy may be filled by the Board of Directors.
- (b) Duties of Chairman of the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors, when present, shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall perform other duties commonly incident to his office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors shall designate from time to time. If there is no President, then the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall also serve as the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation and shall have the powers and duties prescribed in paragraph (c) of this Section 28.
- (c) Duties of President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and at all meetings of the Board of Directors, unless the Chairman of the Board of Directors has been appointed and is present. Unless some other officer has been elected Chief Executive Officer of the corporation, the President shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have general supervision, direction and control of the business and officers of the corporation. The President shall perform other duties commonly incident to his office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors shall designate from time to time.
- (d) Duties of Vice Presidents. The Vice Presidents may assume and perform the duties of the President in the absence or disability of the President or whenever the office of President is vacant. The Vice Presidents shall perform other duties commonly incident to their office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or the President shall designate from time to time.
- (e) Duties of Secretary. The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the stockholders and of the Board of Directors and shall record all acts and proceedings thereof in the minute book of the corporation. The Secretary shall give notice in conformity with these Bylaws of all meetings of the stockholders and of all meetings of the Board of Directors and any committee thereof requiring notice. The Secretary shall perform all other duties given him in these Bylaws and other duties commonly incident to his office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors shall designate from time to time. The President may direct any Assistant Secretary to assume and perform the duties of the Secretary in the absence or disability of the Secretary, and each Assistant Secretary shall perform other duties commonly incident to his office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or the President shall designate from time to time.
- (f) Duties of Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer shall keep or cause to be kept the books of account of the corporation in a thorough and proper manner and shall render statements of the financial affairs of the corporation in such form and as often as required by the Board of Directors or the President. The Chief Financial Officer, subject to the order of the Board of Directors, shall have the custody of all funds and securities of the corporation. The Chief Financial Officer shall perform other duties commonly incident to his office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or the President shall designate from time to time. The President may direct the Treasurer or any Assistant Treasurer, or the Controller or any Assistant Controller to assume and perform the duties of the Chief Financial Officer in the absence or disability of the Chief Financial Officer, and each Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Controller shall perform other duties commonly incident to his office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or the President shall designate from time to time.
- Section 29. Delegation of Authority. The Board of Directors may from time to time delegate the powers or duties of any officer to any other officer or agent, notwithstanding any provision hereof.
- Section 30. Resignations. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors or to the President or to the Secretary. Any such resignation shall be effective when received by the person or persons to whom such notice is given, unless a later time is specified therein, in which event the resignation shall become effective at such later time. Unless otherwise specified in such notice, the acceptance of any such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. Any resignation shall be without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the corporation under any contract with the resigning officer.

**Section 31. Removal.** Any officer may be removed from office at any time, either with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors in office at the time, or by the unanimous written consent of the directors in office at the time, or by any committee or superior officers upon whom such power of removal may have been conferred by the Board of Directors.

#### ARTICLE VI

## EXECUTION OF CORPORATE INSTRUMENTS AND VOTING OF SECURITIES OWNED BY THE CORPORATION

Section 32. Execution of Corporate Instrument. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, determine the method and designate the signatory officer or officers, or other person or persons, to execute on behalf of the corporation any corporate instrument or document, or to sign on behalf of the corporation the corporate name without limitation, or to enter into contracts on behalf of the corporation, except where otherwise provided by law or these Bylaws, and such execution or signature shall be binding upon the corporation.

Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Board of Directors or otherwise required by law, promissory notes, deeds of trust, mortgages and other evidences of indebtedness of the corporation, and other corporate instruments or documents requiring the corporate seal, and certificates of shares of stock owned by the corporation, shall be executed, signed or endorsed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or the President or any Vice President, and by the Secretary or Treasurer or any Assistant Secretary or Assistant Treasurer. All other instruments and documents requiring the corporate signature, but not requiring the corporate seal, may be executed as aforesaid or in such other manner as may be directed by the Board of Directors.

All checks and drafts drawn on banks or other depositaries on funds to the credit of the corporation or in special accounts of the corporation shall be signed by such person or persons as the Board of Directors shall authorize so to do.

Unless authorized or ratified by the Board of Directors or within the agency power of an officer, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or for any amount.

Section 33. Voting of Securities Owned by the Corporation. All stock and other securities of other corporations owned or held by the corporation for itself, or for other parties in any capacity, shall be voted, and all proxies with respect thereto shall be executed, by the person authorized so to do by resolution of the Board of Directors, or, in the absence of such authorization, by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the President, or any Vice President.

#### ARTICLE VII

#### SHARES OF STOCK

Section 34. Form and Execution of Certificates. Certificates for the shares of stock of the corporation shall be in such form as is consistent with the Articles of Incorporation and applicable law. Every holder of stock in the corporation shall be entitled to have a certificate signed by or in the name of the corporation by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or the President or any Vice President and by the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer or the Secretary or Assistant Secretary, certifying the number of shares owned by him in the corporation. Any or all of the signatures on the certificate may be facsimiles. In case any officer, transfer agent, or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such officer, transfer agent, or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be issued with the same effect as if he were such officer, transfer agent, or registrar at the date of issue. Each certificate shall state upon the face or back thereof, in full or in summary, all of the powers, designations, preferences, and rights, and the limitations or restrictions of the shares authorized to be issued or shall, except as otherwise required by law, set forth on the face or back a statement that the corporation will furnish without charge to each stockholder who so requests the powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional, or other special rights of each class of stock or series thereof and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or rights. Within a reasonable time after the issuance or transfer of uncertificated stock, the corporation shall send to the registered owner thereof a written notice containing the

information required to be set forth or stated on certificates pursuant to this section or otherwise required by law or with respect to this section a statement that the corporation will furnish without charge to each stockholder who so requests the powers, designations, preferences and relative participating, optional or other special rights of each class of stock or series thereof and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or rights. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, the rights and obligations of the holders of certificates representing stock of the same class and series shall be identical.

Section 35. Lost Certificates. A new certificate or certificates shall be issued in place of any certificate or certificates theretofore issued by the corporation alleged to have been lost, stolen, or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming the certificate of stock to be lost, stolen, or destroyed. The corporation may require, as a condition precedent to the issuance of a new certificate or certificates, the owner of such lost, stolen, or destroyed certificate or certificates, or his legal representative, to advertise the same in such manner as it shall require or to give the corporation a surety bond in such form and amount as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made against the corporation with respect to the certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen, or destroyed.

#### Section 36. Transfers.

- (a) Transfers of record of shares of stock of the corporation shall be made only upon its books by the holders thereof, in person or by attorney duly authorized, and upon the surrender of a properly endorsed certificate or certificates for a like number of shares.
- (b) The corporation shall have power to enter into and perform any agreement with any number of stockholders of any one or more classes of stock of the corporation to restrict the transfer of shares of stock of the corporation of any one or more classes owned by such stockholders in any manner not prohibited by the Nevada Revised Statutes ("N.R.S."), Chapter 78.

#### Section 37. Fixing Record Dates.

- (a) In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which record date shall not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) days before the date of such meeting. If no record date is fixed by the Board of Directors, the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held. A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.
- (b) In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights or the stockholders entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock, or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted, and which record date shall be not more than sixty (60) days prior to such action. If no record date is filed, the record date for determining stockholders for any such purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto.

Section 38. Registered Stockholders. The corporation shall be entitled to recognize the exclusive right of a person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive dividends, and to vote as such owner, and shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such share or shares on the part of any other person whether or not it shall have express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of Nevada.

#### ARTICLE VIII

#### OTHER SECURITIES OF THE CORPORATION

Section 39. Execution of Other Securities. All bonds, debentures and other corporate securities of the corporation, other than stock certificates (covered in Section 34), may be signed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the President or any Vice President, or such other person as may be authorized by the Board of Directors, and the corporate seal impressed thereon or a facsimile of such seal imprinted thereon and attested by the signature of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, or the Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer; provided, however, that where any such bond, debenture or other corporate security shall be authenticated by the manual signature, or where permissible facsimile signature, of a trustee under an indenture pursuant to which such bond, debenture or other corporate security shall be issued, the signatures of the persons signing and attesting the corporate seal on such bond, debenture or other corporate security may be the imprinted facsimile of the signatures of such persons. Interest coupons appertaining to any such bond, debenture or other corporate security, authenticated by a trustee as aforesaid, shall be signed by the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer of the corporation or such other person as may be authorized by the Board of Directors, or bear imprinted thereon the facsimile signature of such person. In case any officer who shall have signed or attested any bond, debenture or other corporate security, or whose facsimile signature shall appear thereon or on any such interest coupon, shall have been delivered, such bond, debenture or other corporate security nevertheless may be adopted by the corporation and issued and delivered as though the person who signed the same or whose facsimile signature shall have been used thereon had not ceased to be such officer of the corporation.

#### ARTICLE IX

#### **DIVIDENDS**

Section 40. Declaration of Dividends. Dividends upon the capital stock of the corporation, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, if any, may be declared by the Board of Directors pursuant to law at any regular or special meeting. Dividends may be paid in cash, in property, or in shares of the capital stock, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 41. Dividend Reserve. Before payment of any dividend, there may be set aside out of any funds of the corporation available for dividends such sum or sums as the Board of Directors from time to time, in their absolute discretion, think proper as a reserve or reserves to meet contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for repairing or maintaining any property of the corporation, or for such other purpose as the Board of Directors shall think conducive to the interests of the corporation, and the Board of Directors may modify or abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.

#### ARTICLE X

#### FISCAL YEAR

Section 42. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.

#### ARTICLE XI

#### INDEMNIFICATION

#### Section 43. Indemnification of Directors, Executive Officers, Other Officers, Employees and Other Agents.

(a) Directors and Officers. The corporation shall indemnify its directors and officers to the fullest extent not prohibited by N.R.S. Chapter 78; provided, however, that the corporation may modify the extent of such indemnification by individual contracts with its directors and officers; and, provided, further, that the corporation shall not be required to indemnify any director or officer in connection with any proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person unless (i) such indemnification is expressly required to be made by law, (ii) the proceeding was authorized by the Board of Directors of the corporation, (iii) such indemnification is provided by the corporation, in its sole discretion, pursuant to the powers vested in the corporation under N.R.S. Chapter 78 or (iv) such indemnification is required to be made under subsection (d).

- (b) Employees and Other Agents. The corporation shall have power to indemnify its employees and other agents as set forth in N.R.S. Chapter 78.
- (c) Expense. The corporation shall advance to any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he is or was a director or officer, of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director or executive officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, prior to the final disposition of the proceeding, promptly following request therefor, all expenses incurred by any director or officer in connection with such proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such person to repay said mounts if it should be determined ultimately that such person is not entitled to be indemnified under this Bylaw or otherwise.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless otherwise determined pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Bylaw, no advance shall be made by the corporation to an officer of the corporation (except by reason of the fact that such officer is or was a director of the corporation in which event this paragraph shall not apply) in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, if a determination is reasonably and promptly made (i) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to the proceeding, or (ii) if such quorum is not obtainable, or, even if obtainable, a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, that the facts known to the decision-making party at the time such determination is made demonstrate clearly and convincingly that such person acted in bad faith or in a manner that such person did not believe to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation.

- (d) Enforcement. Without the necessity of entering into an express contract, all rights to indemnification and advances to directors and officers under this Bylaw shall be deemed to be contractual rights and be effective to the same extent and as if provided for in a contract between the corporation and the director or officer. Any right to indemnification or advances granted by this Bylaw to a director or officer shall be enforceable by or on behalf of the person holding such right in any court of competent jurisdiction if (i) the claim for indemnification or advances is denied, in whole or in part, or (ii) no disposition of such claim is made within ninety (90) days of request therefor. The claimant in such enforcement action, if successful in whole or in part, shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting his claim. In connection with any claim for indemnification, the corporation shall be entitled to raise as a defense to any such action that the claimant has not met the standard of conduct that make it permissible under N.R.S. Chapter 78 for the corporation to indemnify the claimant for the amount claimed. In connection with any claim by an officer of the corporation (except in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such officer is or was a director of the corporation) for advances, the corporation shall be entitled to raise a defense as to any such action clear and convincing evidence that such person acted in bad faith or in a manner that such person did not believe to be in or not opposed in the best interests of the corporation, or with respect to any criminal action or proceeding that such person acted without reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was lawful. Neither the failure of the corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or its stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such action that indemnification of the claimant is proper in the circumstances because he has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in N.R.S. Chapter 78, nor an actual determination by the corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or its stockholders) that the claimant has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall be a defense to the action or create a presumption that claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct. In any suit brought by a director or officer to enforce a right to indemnification or to an advancement of expenses hereunder, the burden of proving that the director or officer is not entitled to be indemnified, or to such advancement of expenses, under this Article XI or otherwise shall be on the corporation.
- (e) Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The rights conferred on any person by this Bylaw shall not be exclusive of any other right which such person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, provision of the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding office. The corporation is specifically authorized to enter into individual contracts with any or all of its directors, officers, employees or agents respecting indemnification and advances, to the fullest extent not prohibited by N.R.S. Chapter 78.

- (f) Survival of Rights. The rights conferred on any person by this Bylaw shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or other agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.
- (g) Insurance. To the fullest extent permitted by N.R.S. Chapter 78, the corporation, upon approval by the Board of Directors, may purchase insurance on behalf of any person required or permitted to be indemnified pursuant to this Bylaw.
- (h) Amendments. Any repeal or modification of this Bylaw shall only be prospective and shall not affect the rights under this Bylaw in effect at the time of the alleged occurrence of any action or omission to act that is the cause of any proceeding against any agent of the corporation.
- (i) Saving Clause. If this Bylaw or any portion hereof shall be invalidated on any ground by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the corporation shall nevertheless indemnify each director and officer to the full extent not prohibited by any applicable portion of this Bylaw that shall not have been invalidated, or by any other applicable law.
  - (j) Certain Definitions. For the purposes of this Bylaw, the following definitions shall apply:
- (i) The term "proceeding" shall be broadly construed and shall include, without limitation, the investigation, preparation, prosecution, defense, settlement, arbitration and appeal of, and the giving of testimony in, any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative.
- (ii) The term "expenses" shall be broadly construed and shall include, without limitation, court costs, attorneys' fees, witness fees, fines, amounts paid in settlement or judgment and any other costs and expenses of any nature or kind incurred in connection with any proceeding.
- (iii) The term the "corporation" shall include, in addition to the resulting corporation, any constituent corporation (including any constituent of a constituent) absorbed in a consolidation or merger which, if its separate existence had continued, would have had power and authority to indemnify its directors, officers, and employees or agents, so that any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of such constituent corporation, or is or was serving at the request of such constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, shall stand in the same position under the provisions of this Bylaw with respect to the resulting or surviving corporation as he would have with respect to such constituent corporation if its separate existence had continued.
- (iv) References to a "director," "executive officer," "employee," or "agent" of the corporation shall include, without limitation, situations where such person is serving at the request of the corporation as, respectively, a director, executive officer, officer, employee, trustee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise.
- (v) References to "other enterprises" shall include employee benefit plans; references to "fines" shall include any excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit plan; and references to "serving at the request of the corporation" shall include any service as a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation which imposes duties on, or involves services by, such director, officer, employee, or agent with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants, or beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to have acted in a manner "not opposed to the best interests of the corporation" as referred to in this Bylaw.

#### ARTICLE XII

NOTICES

#### Section 44. Notices.

- (a) Notice to Stockholders. Whenever, under any provisions of these Bylaws, notice is required to be given to any stockholder, it shall be given in writing, timely and duly deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to his last known post office address as shown by the stock record of the corporation or its transfer agent.
- (b) Notice to directors. Any notice required to be given to any director may be given by the method stated in subsection (a), by telephone, facsimile, email or by sms text message, except that such notice other than one which is delivered personally shall be sent to such address as such director shall have filed in writing with the Secretary, or, in the absence of such filing, to the last known post office address of such director.
- (c) Affidavit of Mailing. An affidavit of mailing, executed by a duly authorized and competent employee of the corporation or its transfer agent appointed with respect to the class of stock affected, specifying the name and address or the names and addresses of the stockholder or stockholders, or director or directors, to whom any such notice or notices was or were given, and the time and method of giving the same, shall in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts therein contained.
- (d) Time Notices Deemed Given. All notices given by mail, as above provided, shall be deemed to have been given as at the time of mailing, and all notices given by facsimile, telex or telegram shall be deemed to have been given as of the sending time recorded at time of transmission.
- (e) Methods of Notice. It shall not be necessary that the same method of giving notice be employed in respect of all directors, but one permissible method may be employed in respect of any one or more, and any other permissible method or methods may be employed in respect of any other or others.
- (f) Failure to Receive Notice. The period or limitation of time within which any stockholder may exercise any option or right, or enjoy any privilege or benefit, or be required to act, or within which any director may exercise any power or right, or enjoy any privilege, pursuant to any notice sent him ill the manner above provided, shall not be affected or extended in any manner by the failure of such stockholder or such director to receive such notice.
- (g) Notice to Person with Whom Communication Is Unlawful. Whenever notice is required to be given, under any provision of law or of the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the corporation, to any person with whom communication is unlawful, the giving of such notice to such person shall not be require and there shall be no duty to apply to any governmental authority or agency for a license or permit to give such notice to such person. Any action or meeting which shall be taken or held without notice to any such person with whom communication is unlawful shall have the same force and effect as if such notice had been duly given. In the event that the action taken by the corporation is such as to require the filing of a certificate under any provision of N.R.S. Chapter 78, the certificate shall state, if such is the fact and if notice is required, that notice was given to all persons entitled to receive notice except such persons with whom communication is unlawful.
- (h) Notice to Person with Undeliverable Address. Whenever notice is required to be given, under any provision of law or the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the corporation, to any stockholder to whom (i) notice of two consecutive annual meetings, and all notices of meetings or of the taking of action by written consent without a meeting to such person during the period between such two consecutive annual meetings, or (ii) all, and at least two, payments (if sent by first class mail) of dividends or interest on securities during a twelve-month period, have been mailed addressed to such person at his address as shown on the records of the corporation and have been returned undeliverable, the giving of such notice to such person shall not be required. Any action or meeting which shall be taken or held without notice to such person shall have the same force and effect as if such notice had been duly given. If any such person shall deliver to the corporation a written notice setting forth his then current address, the requirement that notice be given to such person shall be reinstated. In the event that the action taken by the corporation is such as to require the filing of a certificate under any provision of N.R.S. Chapter 78, the certificate need not state that notice was not given to persons to whom notice was not required to be given pursuant to this paragraph.

#### ARTICLE XIII

#### AMENDMENTS

#### Section 45. Amendments.

The Board of Directors shall have the sole power to adopt, amend, or repeal the Bylaws as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.

#### ARTICLE XIV

#### LOANS TO OFFICERS

Section 46. Loans to Officers. The corporation may lend money to, or guarantee any obligation of, or otherwise assist any officer or other employee of the corporation or of its subsidiaries, including any officer or employee who is a Director of the corporation or its subsidiaries, whenever, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, such loan, guarantee or assistance may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation. The loan, guarantee or other assistance may be with or without interest and may be unsecured, or secured in such manner as the Board of Directors shall approve, including, without limitation, a pledge of shares of stock of the corporation. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be deemed to deny, limit or restrict the powers of guaranty or warranty of the corporation at common law or under any statute.

#### ARTICLE XV

#### **BOARD OF ADVISORS**

Section 47. Board of Advisors. The Board of Directors, in its discretion, may establish a Board of Advisors consisting of individuals who may or may not be stockholders or directors of the corporation. The purpose of the Board of Advisors would be to advise the officers and directors of the corporation with respect to such matters as such officers and directors shall choose, and any other such matters which the members of such Board of Advisors deem appropriate in furtherance of the best interest of the corporation. The Board of Advisors shall meet on such basis as the members thereof may determine. The Board of Directors may eliminate the Board of Advisors at any time. No member of the Board of Advisors, nor the Board of Advisors itself, shall have any authority within the corporation or any decision making power and shall be merely advisory in nature. Unless the Board of Directors determines another method of appointment, the President shall recommend possible members to the Board of Directors, who shall approve or reject such appointments.

Declared and certified as the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Brookmount Explorations, Inc. on May 10, 2021

Signature of Officer: /s/ Nils Ollquist
Name of Officer: Nils Ollquist

Position of Officer: CEO

## BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS, INC. SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

#### NOTICE TO INVESTORS

THIS INVESTMENT INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK. THIS INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE ONLY FOR PERSONS WHO CAN BEAR THE ECONOMIC RISK FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME AND WHO CAN AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. FURTHERMORE, INVESTORS MUST UNDERSTAND THAT SUCH INVESTMENT IS ILLIQUID AND IS EXPECTED TO CONTINUE TO BE ILLIQUID FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. ALTHOUGH A PUBLIC MARKET EXISTS FOR THE SECURITIES CUSTODIANS, CLEARING HOUSES, BROKERAGE FIRMS AND TRANSFER AGENTS MAY REQUIRE ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION BEFORE ACCEPTING THE SHARES AND MAY, EACH IN THEIR SOLE DISCRETION, REFUSE TO ACCEPT SUCH SHARES.

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE-SKY LAWS AND ARE BEING OFFERED AND SOLD IN RELIANCE ON EXEMPTIONS FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS. ALTHOUGH AN OFFERING STATEMENT HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE "SEC"), THAT OFFERING STATEMENT DOES NOT INCLUDE THE SAME INFORMATION THAT WOULD BE INCLUDED IN A REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE ACT. THE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SEC, ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR OTHER REGULATORY AUTHORITY, NOR HAVE ANY OF THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES PASSED UPON THE MERITS OF THIS OFFERING OR THE ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER MATERIALS OR INFORMATION MADE AVAILABLE TO PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL.

THE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT. IN ADDITION, THE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES OR "BLUE SKY" LAWS. INVESTORS WHO ARE NOT "ACCREDITED INVESTORS" (AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED IN SECTION 501 OF REGULATION D PROMULGATED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) ARE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS ON THE AMOUNT THEY MAY INVEST, AS SET OUT IN SECTION 4(g). THE COMPANY IS RELYING ON THE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES SET FORTH BY EACH INVESTOR IN THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY INVESTOR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING TO DETERMINE THE APPLICABILITY TO THIS OFFERING OF EXEMPTIONS FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY NOT TREAT THE CONTENTS OF THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT, THE OFFERING CIRCULAR OR ANY OF THE OTHER MATERIALS PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY (COLLECTIVELY, THE "OFFERING MATERIALS"), OR ANY PRIOR OR SUBSEQUENT COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS (INCLUDING "TESTING THE WATERS" MATERIALS) AS INVESTMENT, LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE. IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE COMPANY AND THE TERMS OF THIS OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND THE RISKS INVOLVED. EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THE INVESTOR'S OWN COUNSEL, ACCOUNTANTS AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS AS TO INVESTMENT, LEGAL, TAX AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE INVESTOR'S PROPOSED INVESTMENT.

THE OFFERING MATERIALS MAY CONTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION RELATING TO, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE COMPANY, ITS BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGY, AND ITS INDUSTRY. THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE BASED ON THE BELIEFS OF, ASSUMPTIONS MADE BY, AND INFORMATION CURRENTLY AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT. WHEN USED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS, THE WORDS "ESTIMATE," "PROJECT," "BELIEVE," "ANTICIPATE," "INTEND," "EXPECT" AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH CONSTITUTE FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS. THESE STATEMENTS REFLECT MANAGEMENT'S CURRENT VIEWS WITH RESPECT TO FUTURE EVENTS AND ARE SUBJECT TO RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE THE COMPANY'S ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE CONTAINED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE ON WHICH THEY ARE MADE. THE COMPANY DOES NOT UNDERTAKE ANY OBLIGATION TO REVISE OR UPDATE THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS TO REFLECT EVENTS OR CIRCUMSTANCES AFTER SUCH DATE OR TO REFLECT THE OCCURRENCE OF UNANTICIPATED EVENTS.

#### SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

This subscription agreement (this "Subscription Agreement" or the "Agreement") is entered into by and between Brookmount Explorations, Inc., a Nevada corporation (hereinafter the "Company") and the undersigned (hereinafter the "Investor") as of the date set forth on the signature page hereto. Any term used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Offering Circular (as defined below).

#### RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company desires to offer shares of common stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock") on a "best efforts" basis pursuant to Regulation A of Section 3(6) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), pursuant to a Tier 1 offering (the "Offering"), of up to 25,000,000 shares of Common Stock of the Company, at a purchase price of \$0.12 per share (the "Per Share Purchase Price"), for total gross proceeds of up to \$[] (the "Maximum Offering"); and

WHEREAS, the Investor desires to acquire that number of shares of Common Stock (the "Shares") as set forth on the signature page hereto at the purchase price set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Offering will terminate on the first to occur of: (i) the date on which the Maximum Offering is completed; or (ii) [], 2025 subject to the Company's right, in its sole discretion, to extend such date to as late as April 7, 2023 (in each case, the "Termination Date"); (iii) or any such later date as determined in the sole discretion of the Company, subject to SEC Qualification of the amended offering.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

#### 1. Subscription

- (a) The Investor hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of Shares set forth on the signature page hereto at the Per Share Purchase Price, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. The aggregate purchase price for the Shares with respect to each Investor (the "Purchase Price") is payable in the manner provided in *Section 2(a)* below.
- (b) Investor understands that the Shares are being offered pursuant to the Form 1-A Offering Statement and its exhibits, as amended and as qualified by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on [ ], 2024 (which may be found at [ ]) together with the final Offering Circular filed March 15, 2022 (which may be found at [ ]) (the "Offering Circular"). The Investor is also urged to review all of the Company's filings with OTC Markets Group, Inc., which may be accessed at https://www.otcmarkets.com/stock/BMXI/disclosure (all such reports, together with the Offering Circular are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "OTC Reports"). By subscribing to the Offering, the Investor acknowledges that Investor has received and reviewed a copy of the OTC Reports and any other information required by Investor to make an investment decision with respect to the Shares. The Company will accept tenders of funds to purchase the Shares. The Company will close on investments on a "rolling basis," pursuant to the terms of the Offering Circular. As a result, not all investors will receive their Shares on the same date.
- (c) This subscription may be accepted or rejected in whole or in part, for any reason or for no reason, at any time prior to the Termination Date, by the Company at its sole and absolute discretion. In addition, the Company, at its sole and absolute discretion, may allocate to Investor only a portion of the number of the Shares that Investor has subscribed for hereunder. The Company will notify Investor whether this subscription is accepted (whether in whole or in part) or rejected. If Investor's subscription is rejected, Investor's payment (or portion thereof if partially rejected) will be returned to Investor without interest and all of Investor's obligations hereunder shall terminate. In the event of rejection of this subscription in its entirety, or in the event the sale of the Shares (or any portion thereof) to an Investor is not consummated for any reason, this Subscription Agreement shall have no force or effect, except for *Section 5* hereof, which shall remain in full force and effect.

- (d) The terms of this Subscription Agreement shall be binding upon Investor and its permitted transferees, heirs, successors and assigns (collectively, the "Transferees"); provided, however, that for any such transfer to be deemed effective, the Transferee shall have executed and delivered to the Company in advance an instrument in form acceptable to the Company in its sole discretion, pursuant to which the proposed Transferee shall acknowledge and agree to be bound by the representations and warranties of Investor and the terms of this Subscription Agreement. No transfer of this Agreement may be made without the consent of the Company, which may be withheld in its sole and absolute discretion.
- 2. Payment and Purchase Procedure. The Purchase Price shall be paid simultaneously with Investor's subscription. Investor shall deliver payment for the aggregate purchase price of the Shares by check, credit card, ACH deposit or by wire transfer to an account designated by the Company in Section 8 below. The Investor acknowledges that, in order to subscribe for Shares, he must fully comply with the purchase procedure requirements set forth in Section 8 below.
- 3. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company represents and warrants to Investor that the following representations and warranties are true and complete in all material respects as of the date of each Closing: (a) the Company is a corporation duly formed, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Company has all requisite power and authority to own and operate its properties and assets, to execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement, the Shares and any other agreements or instruments required hereunder. The Company is duly qualified and is authorized to do business and is in good standing as a foreign corporation in all jurisdictions in which the nature of its activities and of its properties (both owned and leased) makes such qualification necessary, except for those jurisdictions in which failure to do so would not have a material adverse effect on the Company or its business; (b) The issuance, sale and delivery of the Shares in accordance with this Subscription Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company. The Shares, when issued, sold and delivered against payment therefor in accordance with the provisions of this Subscription Agreement, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable; (c) the acceptance by the Company of this Subscription Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby are within the Company's powers and have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company. Upon the Company's acceptance of this Subscription Agreement, this Subscription Agreement shall constitute a valid and binding agreement of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors' rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specifi
- **4. Representations and Warranties of Investor**. By subscribing to the Offering, Investor (and, if Investor is purchasing the Shares subscribed for hereby in a fiduciary capacity, the person or persons for whom Investor is so purchasing) represents and warrants, which representations and warranties are true and complete in all material respects, as of the date of each Closing:
- (a) Requisite Power and Authority. Investor has all necessary power and authority under all applicable provisions of law to subscribe to the Offering, to execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and to carry out the provisions thereof. All actions on Investor's part required for the lawful subscription to the offering have been or will be effectively taken prior to the Closing. Upon subscribing to the Offering, this Subscription Agreement will be a valid and binding obligation of Investor, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors' rights and (ii) as limited by general principles of equity that restrict the availability of equitable remedies.
- (b) Company Offering Circular and OTC Reports. Investor acknowledges the public availability of the Company's Offering Circular which can be viewed on the SEC Edgar Database, under the CIK number 0001122993. This Offering Circular is made available in the Company's qualified offering statement on SEC Form 1-A, as amended, and was qualified by the SEC on [], 2024. In the Company's Offering Circular it makes clear the terms and conditions of the offering of Shares and the risks associated therewith are described. Investor has had an opportunity to discuss the Company's business, management and financial affairs with directors, officers and management of the Company and has had the opportunity to review the Company's operations and facilities. Investor has also had the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from the Company and its management regarding the terms and conditions of this investment. Investor acknowledges that except as set forth herein, no representations or warranties have been made to Investor, or to Investor's advisors or representative, by the Company or others with respect to the business or prospects of the Company or its financial condition.

- (c) Investment Experience; Investor Determination of Suitability. Investor has sufficient experience in financial and business matters to be capable of utilizing such information to evaluate the merits and risks of Investor's investment in the Shares, and to make an informed decision relating thereto. Alternatively, the Investor has utilized the services of a purchaser representative and together they have sufficient experience in financial and business matters that they are capable of utilizing such information to evaluate the merits and risks of Investor's investment in the Shares, and to make an informed decision relating thereto. Investor has evaluated the risks of an investment in the Shares, including those described in the section of the Offering Circular entitled "Risk Factors," and has determined that the investment is suitable for Investor. Investor has adequate financial resources for an investment of this character. Investor could bear a complete loss of Investor's investment in the Company.
- (d) No Registration. Investor understands that the Shares are not being registered under the Securities Act on the ground that the issuance is exempt under Regulation A of Section 3(b) of the Securities Act, and that reliance on such exemption is predicated in part on the truth and accuracy of Investor's representations and warranties, and those of the other purchasers of the Shares, in the offering. Investor further understands that, at present, the Company is offering the Shares solely by members of its management. However, the Company reserves the right to engage the services of a broker/dealer who is registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA"). Accordingly, until such FINRA registered broker/dealer has been engaged as a placement or selling agent, the Shares may not be "covered securities" under the National Securities Market Improvement Act of 1996, and the Company may be required to registered or qualified, the Company will notify the Investor and all prospective purchasers of the Shares as to those states in which the Company is permitted to offer and sell the Shares. In the event that the Company engages a FINRA registered broker/dealer as placement or selling agent, and FINRA approves the compensation of such broker/dealer, then the Shares will no longer be required to be registered under state securities laws on the basis that the issuance thereof is exempt as an offer and sale not involving a registrable public offering in such state, as the Shares will be "covered securities" under the National Securities Market Improvement Act of 1996. The Investor covenants not to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Shares unless such Shares have been registered under the applicable state securities laws in which the Shares are sold, or unless exemptions from such registration requirements are otherwise available.
- (e) *Illiquidity and Continued Economic Risk*. Investor acknowledges and agrees that although there is a public market for the Shares there is no guarantee of liquidity in that market. Additionally, there may be additional restrictions or requirements imposed upon the Investor by the Transfer Agent, Custodian, Clearing House or Brokerage firm that could limit or even prevent. The Company has no obligation to list any of the Shares on any market or take any steps (including registration under the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) with respect to facilitating trading or resale of the Shares. Investor must bear the economic risk of this investment indefinitely and Investor acknowledges that Investor is able to bear the economic risk of losing Investor's entire investment in the Shares.
  - (f) Accredited Investor Status or Investment Limits. Investor represents that either:
  - (i) that Investor is an "accredited investor" within the meaning of Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Shares Act; or
- (ii) that the Purchase Price, together with any other amounts previously used to purchase Shares in this offering, does not exceed Ten Percent (10%) of the greater of Investor's annual income or net worth (or in the case where Investor is a non-natural person, their revenue or net assets for such Investor's most recently completed fiscal year end).

Investor represents that to the extent it has any questions with respect to its status as an accredited investor, or the application of the investment limits, it has sought professional advice.

- (g) *Stockholder Information*. Within five (5) days after receipt of a request from the Company, Investor hereby agrees to provide such information with respect to its status as a stockholder (or potential stockholder) and to execute and deliver such documents as may reasonably be necessary to comply with any and all laws and regulations to which the Company is or may become subject, including, without limitation, the need to determine the accredited investor status of the Company's stockholders. Investor further agrees that in the event it transfers any Shares, it will require the transferee of such Shares to agree to provide such information to the Company as a condition of such transfer.
- (h) Valuation; Arbitrary Determination of Per Share Purchase Price by the Company. Investor acknowledges that the Per Share Purchase Price of the Shares to be sold in this offering was set by the Company on the basis of the Company's internal valuation and no warranties are made as to value. Investor further acknowledges that future offerings of securities of the Company may be made at lower valuations, with the result that Investor's investment will bear a lower valuation.
- (i) **Domicile.** Investor maintains Investor's domicile (and is not a transient or temporary resident) at the address provided with Investor's subscription.
- (j) Foreign Investors. If Investor is not a United States person (as defined by Section 7701(a)(30) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended), Investor hereby represents that it has satisfied itself as to the full observance of the laws of its jurisdiction in connection with any invitation to subscribe for the Shares or any use of this Subscription Agreement, including (i) the legal requirements within its jurisdiction for the purchase of the Shares, (ii) any foreign exchange restrictions applicable to such purchase, (iii) any governmental or other consents that may need to be obtained, and (iv) the income tax and other tax consequences, if any, that may be relevant to the purchase, holding, redemption, sale, or transfer of the Shares. Investor's subscription and payment for and continued beneficial ownership of the Shares will not violate any applicable securities or other laws of Investor's jurisdiction.
- (k) *Fiduciary Capacity*. If Investor is purchasing the Shares in a fiduciary capacity for another person or entity, including without limitation a corporation, partnership, trust or any other entity, the Investor has been duly authorized and empowered to execute this Agreement and all other subscription documents. Upon request of the Company, Investor will provide true, complete and current copies of all relevant documents creating the Investor, authorizing its investment in the Company and/or evidencing the satisfaction of the foregoing.
- 5. Indemnity. The representations, warranties and covenants made by Investor herein shall survive the closing of this Subscription Agreement. Investor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and its respective officers, directors and affiliates, and each other person, if any, who controls the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense whatsoever (including, but not limited to, any and all reasonable attorneys' fees, including attorneys' fees on appeal) and expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, preparing or defending against any false representation or warranty or breach of failure by Investor to comply with any covenant or agreement made by Investor herein or in any other document furnished by Investor to any of the foregoing in connection with this transaction.
- 6. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of the Offering Circular, including, without limitation, this Subscription Agreement, shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Nevada, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law thereof. Each party agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the interpretations, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by this Subscription Agreement and any documents included within the Offering Circular (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, partners, members, employees or agents) shall be commenced exclusively in the state and federal courts sitting in the City of Reno. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in the City of Reno for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the documents included within the Offering Circular), and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such action or proceeding is improper or is an inconvenient venue for such proceeding. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any such action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such

party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Subscription Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. If any party hereto shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of the documents included within the Offering Circular, then the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the non-prevailing party for its reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs and expenses incurred with the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding. IN ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IN ANY JURISDICTION BROUGHT BY ANY PARTY AGAINST ANY OTHER PARTY, THE PARTIES EACH KNOWINGLY AND INTENTIONALLY, TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, HEREBY ABSOLUTELY, UNCONDITIONALLY, IRREVOCABLY AND EXPRESSLY WAIVES FOREVER TRIAL BY JURY.

- 7. Notices. Notice, requests, demands and other communications relating to this Subscription Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if and when (a) delivered personally, on the date of such delivery; or (b) mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, in the third day after the posting thereof; or (c) emailed on the date of such delivery to the address of the respective parties as follows, if to the Company, to Brookmount Explorations, Inc., 1 East Liberty, Suite 600, Reno, NV 89501. If to Investor, at Investor's address supplied in connection with this subscription, or to such other address as may be specified by written notice from time to time by the party entitled to receive such notice. Any notices, requests, demands or other communications by email shall be confirmed by letter given in accordance with (a) or (b) above.
- **8. Purchase Procedure**. The Investor acknowledges that, in order to subscribe for Shares, he must, and he does hereby, deliver to the Company: (a) a fully completed and executed counterpart of the Signature Page attached to this Subscription Agreement; and (b) payment for the aggregate Purchase Price in the amount set forth on the Signature Page attached to this Agreement. Payment may be made by either check, wire, credit card or ACH deposits.

Please send checks to the Company. Please note on your check: "Brookmount Explorations, Inc. Reg A offering"

Brookmount Explorations, Inc. c/o The Crone Law Group, P.C. 1 East Liberty, Suite 600 Reno, NV 89501

Wire instructions to the Company:

Bank name: Wells Fargo Bank

ABA: 121000248

Account: 3192052045

SWIFT Code: WFBIUS6S

9. Miscellaneous. All pronouns and any variations thereof shall be deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine, neuter, singular or plural, as the identity of the person or persons or entity or entities may require. Other than as set forth herein, this Subscription Agreement is not transferable or assignable by Investor. The representations, warranties and agreements contained herein shall be deemed to be made by and be binding upon Investor and its heirs, executors, administrators and successors and shall inure to the benefit of the Company and its successors and assigns. None of the provisions of this Subscription Agreement may be waived, changed or terminated orally or otherwise, except as specifically set forth herein or except by a writing signed by the Company and Investor. In the event any part of this Subscription Agreement is found to be void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions are intended to be separable and binding with the same effect as if the void or unenforceable part were never the subject of agreement. The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of one or more of the provisions of this Subscription Agreement in such jurisdiction or the validity, legality or enforceability of this Subscription Agreement, including any such provision, in any other jurisdiction, it being intended that all rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. This Subscription Agreement supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the parties, if any, with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains the sole and entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. The terms and provisions of this Subscription Agreement are intended solely for the benefit of each party hereto and their respective successors and assigns,

and it is not the intention of the parties to confer, and no provision hereof shall confer, third-party beneficiary rights upon any other person. The headings used in this Subscription Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and do not define or limit the provisions hereof. In the event that either party hereto shall commence any suit, action or other proceeding to interpret this Subscription Agreement, or determine to enforce any right or obligation created hereby, then such party, if it prevails in such action, shall recover its reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees and expenses and costs of appeal, if any. All notices and communications to be given or otherwise made to Investor shall be deemed to be sufficient if sent by e-mail to such address provided by Investor on the signature page of this Subscription Agreement. Unless otherwise specified in this Subscription Agreement, Investor shall send all notices or other communications required to be given hereunder to the Company via e-mail at nils.ollquist@brookmountgold.com. Any such notice or communication shall be deemed to have been delivered and received on the first business day following that on which the e-mail has been sent (assuming that there is no error in delivery). As used in this Section 9, the term "business day" shall mean any day other than a day on which banking institutions in the State of California are legally closed for business. This Subscription Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. No failure or delay by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege under this Subscription Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein provided shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.

10. Consent to Electronic Delivery of Notices, Disclosures and Forms. Investor understands that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any notices, disclosures, forms, privacy statements, reports or other communications (collectively, "Communications") regarding the Company, the Investor's investment in the Company and the shares of Common Stock (including annual and other updates and tax documents) may be delivered by electronic means, such as by email. Investor hereby consents to electronic delivery as described in the preceding sentence. In so consenting, Investor acknowledges that e-mail messages are not secure and may contain computer viruses or other defects, may not be accurately replicated on other systems or may be intercepted, deleted or interfered with, with or without the knowledge of the sender or the intended recipient. The Investor also acknowledges that an e-mail from the Company may be accessed by recipients other than the Investor and may be interfered with, may contain computer viruses or other defects and may not be successfully replicated on other systems. Neither the Company, nor any of its respective officers, directors and affiliates, and each other person, if any, who controls the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act (collectively, the "Company Parties"), gives any warranties in relation to these matters. Investor further understands and agrees to each of the following: (a) other than with respect to tax documents in the case of an election to receive paper versions, none of the Company Parties will be under any obligation to provide Investor with paper versions of any Communications; (b) electronic Communications may be provided to Investor via e-mail or a website of a Company Party upon written notice of such website's internet address to such Investor. In order to view and retain the Communications, the Investor's computer hardware and software must, at a minimum, be capable of accessing the Internet, with connectivity to an internet service provider or any other capable communications medium, and with software capable of viewing and printing a portable document format ("PDF") file created by Adobe Acrobat. Further, the Investor must have a personal e-mail address capable of sending and receiving e-mail messages to and from the Company Parties. To print the documents, the Investor will need access to a printer compatible with his or her hardware and the required software; (c) if these software or hardware requirements change in the future, a Company Party will notify the Investor through written notification. To facilitate these services, the Investor must provide the Company with his or her current e-mail address and update that information as necessary. Unless otherwise required by law, the Investor will be deemed to have received any electronic Communications that are sent to the most current e-mail address that the Investor has provided to the Company in writing; (d) none of the Company Parties will assume liability for non-receipt of notification of the availability of electronic Communications in the event the Investor's e-mail address on file is invalid; the Investor's e-mail or Internet service provider filters the notification as "spam" or "junk mail"; there is a malfunction in the Investor's computer, browser, internet service or software; or for other reasons beyond the control of the Company Parties; and (e) solely with respect to the provision of tax documents by a Company Party, the Investor agrees to each of the following: (i) if the Investor does not consent to receive tax documents electronically, a paper copy will be provided, and (ii) the Investor's consent to receive tax documents electronically continues for every tax year of the Company until the Investor withdraws its consent by notifying the Company in writing.

### [THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

## [SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

INVESTOR CERTIFIES THAT HE HAS READ THIS ENTIRE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND THAT EVERY STATEMENT MADE BY THE INVESTOR HEREIN IS TRUE AND COMPLETE.

THE COMPANY MAY NOT BE OFFERING THE SECURITIES IN EVERY STATE. THE OFFERING MATERIALS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OR SOLICITATION IN ANY STATE OR JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE SECURITIES ARE NOT BEING OFFERED. THE INFORMATION PRESENTED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS WAS PREPARED BY THE COMPANY SOLELY FOR THE USE BY PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING. NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES ARE MADE AS TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN ANY OFFERING MATERIALS, AND NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS IS OR SHOULD BE RELIED UPON AS A PROMISE OR REPRESENTATION AS TO THE FUTURE PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.

THE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION AND FOR ANY REASON WHATSOEVER TO MODIFY, AMEND AND/OR WITHDRAW ALL OR A PORTION OF THE OFFERING AND/OR ACCEPT OR REJECT, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY REASON OR FOR NO REASON, ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES OR TO ALLOT TO ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR LESS THAN THE DOLLAR AMOUNT OF SECURITIES SUCH INVESTOR DESIRES TO PURCHASE. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED. THE OFFERING MATERIALS SPEAK AS OF THEIR DATE. NEITHER THE DELIVERY NOR THE PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES SHALL, UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES, CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY SINCE THAT DATE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Subscription Agreement is executed a	as of the	lay of,	2024.
Number of Shares Subscribed For:			
Total Purchase Price:	\$		
Signature of Investor:			
Name of Investor:			
Address of Investor:			
Electronic Mail Address:			
Investor's SS# or Tax ID#:			
ACCEPTED BY: BROOKMOUNT EXPLORATIONS, INC.			
Signature of Authorized Signatory:			
Name of Authorized Signatory: Nils A. Ollquist, Chief Executive Officer and De	irector		
Date of Acceptance:, 2024.			
g	)		

Joe Laxague
Partner
jlaxague@cronelawgroup.com



1 East Liberty, Suite 600, Reno, NV 89501 420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 2446, New York, NY 10170 NV Office: 775.234.5221

www.cronelawgroup.com

January 19, 2024

Brookmount Explorations, Inc.

Re: Brookmount Explorations, Inc. Offering Statement on Form 1-A

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as counsel for Brookmount Explorations, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Company"), in connection with the Offering Statement on Form 1-A, as amended through the date hereof (the "Offering Statement"), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") pursuant to Regulation A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, relating to the qualification of the exempt offering and sale of pp to 25,000,000 shares of common stock of the Company (the "Shares").

In rendering the opinion set forth below, we have reviewed: (a) the Offering Statement, as amended, and the exhibits thereto; (b) the Company's Articles of Incorporation, as amended; (c) the Company's Bylaws, as amended; (d) certain records of the Company's corporate proceedings as reflected in its minute books; and (e) such statutes, records and other documents as we have deemed relevant. We have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, and conformity with the originals of all documents submitted to us as copies thereof. In addition, we have made such other examinations of law and fact as we have deemed relevant in order to form a basis for the opinion hereinafter expressed. We express no opinion herein as to the laws of any state or jurisdiction other than the substantive laws of the State of Nevada and the federal laws of the United States of America.

Based upon the foregoing, it is our opinion that the Shares have been duly and validly authorized, and when the Offering Statement has become qualified under Regulation A and the Shares have been issued, delivered, and paid for in accordance with the terms of the Offering Statement, such shares will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable shares of the Company's common stock.

We consent to the inclusion of this opinion as an exhibit to the Offering Statement and further consent to all references to us under the caption "Legal Matters" in the Offering Circular.

Sincerely,

The Crone Law Group P.C.

The fayer.